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INTRODUCTION

Markets are harsh on companies  
that are overly dependent on the last 
generation of product or services—
or are too early with the next 
generation. We have been adept  
at renewing our competitive edge by 
anticipating new technologies  
and prudently investing to bring 
them to market. 
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We aim to develop technologies that enable progressively more substantial, 
profitable businesses. New markets entail new risks, so we look for 
intermediate steps that let us learn about the technology and competitive 
dynamics. Staying power is often a key element in the creation of 
significant new markets.

As we celebrate our 25th anniversary, we are a diverse company, involved 
in several different, yet related, markets. The following pages show  
a few examples of how we’ve built on our legacy of innovation to develop 
those market positions. We also give you a preview of a few things  
we are working on now that can continue the trend, and become the 
foundation for future opportunities and revenue.
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In-flIght  
EntErtaInmEnt

Individualized, true broadband for 
every seat. More bandwidth enables 
more passengers to connect  
at once, using their own devices. 
It’s been possible before, but never 
economical…until now.



Starting from a unique networking 
system that enables high performance 
from very small antennas, we then 
established a global satellite service for 
business aviation, maritime, and military 
airborne intelligence, surveillance and 
reconnaissance (ISR)—now one of our 
fastest growing businesses.

ViaSat was selected to build  
the first broadband terminal for 
commercial airlines.

20
01



V
Next? Transition from a successful 
global Ku-band network to new 
opportunities made possible by the 
transformational economics and service 
quality of high-capacity Ka-band, 
beginning with the ViaSat-1 satellite.

ViaSat was selected to build the first 
Ka-band in-flight broadband system.

20
10



We’re transforming 
the cabin experience 
so our customers stay 
connected, informed, 
and entertained While 
they fly.”

“

Robin Hayes
eVP & CCo, Jetblue aiRways
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Satellite  
BroadBaNd

We plan to use our ViaSat-1  
satellite to accelerate the growth  
of our WildBlue service by providing 
a much more compelling value  
for households without access  
to terrestrial broadband and  
to compete for customers at the 
edges of terrestrial networks.



To enable the WildBlue first generation 
Ka-band system, we developed the 
SurfBeam® system to leverage terrestrial 
network software infrastructure and 
created the MMIC chips and microwave 
technology to become a leading Ka-band 
satellite RF provider.

Our VSAT product acquisitions added 
key technologies, established ViaSat 
on the global stage, and brought us an 
extensive commercial customer base.

20
00



V
Next? An infusion of new technology 
into our SurfBeam® 2 system,  
to enable high-capacity satellite  
to satisfy needs in enterprise, military, 
and mobile markets.

The launch of Eutelsat’s KA-SAT  
and anticipated launch of ViaSat-1,  
the world’s highest capacity  
satellites, provide 200+ gigabits-
per-second throughput for bandwidth 
hungry customers. 

SurfBeam® shipments pass  
800,000 terminals.

20
10



this neW system 
can change the 
perception of 
satellite broadband, 
to one of superior 
performance  
and a great choice 
for broadband.”

“

John maduri 
ceo, xplornet communications inc.
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aNteNNaS

Our experience and extensive 
installed base provide a clear cost, 
technology, and business advantage 
for network and satellite operators.



We’ve been chosen again and again  
to engineer antenna systems for each 
new generation of satellite systems. 
From earth observation networks  
to global mobile networks to military 
teleports to HD video broadcast to  
Ka-band for “fiber-in-the-sky” 
backhaul—for low, medium, and 
geosynchronous orbit architectures.

Added antenna products and 
expertise—a 40-year legacy— 
with acquisition of Scientific Atlanta 
Satellite Ground Systems.

20
00



V
Next? Mobility via satellite  
introduces many new requirements  
for antenna performance and 
economics. We’re exploring new 
technologies to meet those needs,  
and to facilitate a seamless transition 
from Ku to Ka in the next decade.

While we are a leader in large-scale  
Ka-band teleports, our focus is just  
as keen on small antenna technology  
for high-growth mobile applications.

20
10



the surfbeam® 2 
gateWays enable  
us to connect  
into a larger 
netWork With neW 
market opportunities.”

“

aRduino PataCCHini
Ceo, skylogiC s.P.a., a eutelsat ComPany
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SituatioNal 
awareNeSS

We are squarely in the middle  
of the military’s move to an 
integrated Global C2 network.  
Our products and services  
form the backbone of long-haul 
networks, securely retrieve  
high-speed ISR data, and deliver  
it to personnel from top to  
bottom in the military hierarchy.



Our initial wins in defense 
communications built expertise  
in secure, small, rugged, lightweight 
mobile terminals that can survive  
tough environments. Then we 
immediately began advancing the 
technology for higher speeds,  
lower-costs, and access to higher 
capacity commercial satellite networks.

Began deliveries of second-generation 
modem modules for backpack-sized, 
battery-operated UHF tactical satcom. 
We’ve delivered about 30,000 UHF band 
modems and terminals for defense 
ground, air, and sea mobile data and 
voice applications.

20
01



V
Next? Adapting mobile and 
transportable government terminals  
to the ViaSat-1 generation of  
broadband satellites for unprecedented 
speeds across Global C2 networks.

Fastest airborne ISR system enables 
U.S. special forces to fly live  
missions transmitting near-HD live  
video using 12-inch antennas.

20
10



military 
communication is 
advancing to an 
integrated netWork 
called the global 
command and 
control netWork  
or global c2.
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letter to tHe 
SHareHolderS

Dear fellow shareholders,

This year marks the 25th anniversary of ViaSat. We’re proud of how the company  
has grown and evolved over its history. The past is not merely a prelude for what is  
yet to come. It also provides perspective on how we’ve adapted to change— 
and most importantly, how we have anticipated it, fostered it, and grown as a result.  
Now, we believe we have the resources to lead change in satellite broadband. 

Our initial forays into consumer broadband technologies several years ago have led us 
today to an opportunity not only to redefine ViaSat, but also multiple industries impacted 
by explosive growth in demand for bandwidth. With change having been a recurring 
theme in these letters in the past, and such an important part of our future, this year  
we thought we’d focus on it.

We live in a moment of history where change is so speeded up that we begin to see  
the present only when it is already disappearing.—R.D. Laing

That thought captures the failure mode for so many technology companies. Attaining 
profitability requires anticipating where the market will be well before it gets there.  
It takes foresight and time to develop technology, customer relationships, and a deep 
understanding of the market factors needed to navigate change. We feel well prepared. 

There are a few inescapable, pervasive themes in telecommunications today. Connectivity. 
Speed. Value. Satellite networks have a big opportunity to connect difficult to reach  
places in both fixed and mobile environments. Bandwidth is a crucial component of that. 



Our ViaSat-1 satellite is expected to create compelling competitive advantages in terms  
of reach and bandwidth for both commercial and government markets. While we began  
the project just over three years ago, we feel we’ve been preparing for this moment  
for over a decade. We’ve been a supplier or subcontractor to other service companies,  
we’ve thoroughly researched markets and terrestrial alternatives, and we’ve engaged  
with customers, distributors and non-users. We have steadily acquired chip, subsystem,  
and software technologies that enable us to literally move the boundaries of space and 
ground systems. We’ve also acquired the companies and expertise to speed technologies 
to market. We’re now tightly integrated in terms of technology and services. 

ViaSat has achieved enviable growth in its first 25 years by developing, manufacturing, 
and selling technology products. But, now our high growth opportunities are poised at the 
intersection of products and services.

The only people who can change the world are people who want to. And not everybody 
does.—Hugh MacLeod 

Fixed and mobile satellite services have a long and profitable history. It is such  
a profitable business that there is a lot of resistance to change. That’s because change 
can diminish the value of existing assets, market relationships, or business processes. 
However, we believe that change is inevitable and that 2011 is just the beginning. 

Eutelsat’s KA-SAT is already in service. ViaSat-1 is scheduled to enter service the last 
calendar quarter of this year. More Ka-band high capacity networks will follow in 2012, 
with ViaSat technology as a key component. Ultimately, success relies on a simple  
value proposition—that customers will choose super-efficient satellites that offer much 
higher data speeds at much lower airtime prices. We’ve seen encouraging signs  
in the direct-to-home consumer market, and in global mobile communications with  
both commercial and government applications. 

For consumer broadband, we aim to deliver more bandwidth, at lower costs, than anyone 
else has ever even wanted to—let alone been able to achieve economically. The same  
is true for in-flight WiFi access. We’ve created exciting partnerships with JetBlue Airways 
and its LiveTV subsidiary, as well as Continental Airlines because of a shared vision  
of what’s possible, and what passengers really want—affordable, even free, broadband 
access on all their own devices. 

Even in defense applications, it’s becoming evident that end users for Global C2 and  
ISR have a different view of their bandwidth needs than what current infrastructure 
supports. A number of institutions simply may not want to deliver the bandwidth those 
end users need because the implications of such change for them are severe.  
We view that as a big opportunity.

It is not the strongest of the species that survives, nor the most intelligent, but the one 
most responsive to change.—Charles Darwin

Global economic and political forces are driving enduring change in the behavior  
of both consumers and governments. Price and value are paramount and more and  
more products and services just won’t make the cut as budgets are squeezed. 
Throughout our 25 years ViaSat has thrived in delivering the right price-value relationship 
to our government customers, capitalizing on growth markets by adapting to changes  
in tactical data links, information assurance, and satellite networking. 



For example, while demand for some information assurance products has crested in 
today’s market, we see growth opportunities in adjacencies such as JTRS and personal 
electronic devices. Cost efficiency is at a premium given defense budget pressures,  
and that’s always been the core of our defense products value proposition. 

The successes we’ve already had with satellite markets, including over $120 million  
in orders in fiscal 2011 for the next generation of Blue Force Tracking, are encouraging. 
We have also had important accomplishments in defense satellite networks by building 
and delivering innovative new services around our products. We see similar opportunities 
in the next wave of information assurance products. 

Our satellite broadband strategy is completely consistent with both our history and  
an era of sober consumer and government budgets. We are investing in being the lowest 
cost producer of high-speed, high-volume satellite bandwidth. It’s a course we began 
charting years ago. ViaSat-1 is the first major step. We are working now on a ViaSat-2 
design that will continue the trend—and we believe it can increase the separation from  
the competitors following behind us.

Change has a considerable psychological impact on the human mind. To the fearful  
it is threatening because it means that things may get worse. To the hopeful it is 
encouraging because things may get better. To the confident it is inspiring because the 
challenge exists to make things better.—King Whitney, Jr. 

We have confidence from our quarter century of experience in consistently thriving  
on the challenges created by change. In fiscal 2011 we set new records for revenues, 
orders, and Adjusted EBITDA. We have spent years preparing for the opportunities 
enabled by this new generation of broadband satellites. We know we have challenges  
this fiscal year due to the costs of network expansion, and non-cash depreciation  
and amortization expenses triggered by the launch of ViaSat-1. But, the potential rewards 
are compelling. 

In this year’s Annual Report we’ve put our new opportunities in the context of the  
ways we’ve prepared, grown, and adapted over the last decade. We trust you’ll find some 
insightful new perspectives—and share our excitement about what’s ahead.

As always we’d like to take this opportunity to thank our employees, shareholders, 
customers, and suppliers for your patience and confidence in us. We’re looking forward  
to riding this wave of change together.

Sincerely, 

Mark Dankberg 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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fiScal Year  
2011 iN reView

April 2010 »  Global mobile broadband installations reach 650 systems serving 
a mix of general aviation, communications-on-the-move, maritime, 
and high-speed rail.

 »  Reached $28 million in delivery orders for our Multifunctional 
Information Distribution System Low Volume Terminal (MIDS-LVT).

MAy 2010 »  Yonder® high-speed mobile Internet access network now  
encircles the globe by adding coverage over the Indian Ocean, 
Guam, and the waters north of Australia.

June 2010 »  Announced acquisition of Stonewood Group Limited, a leader  
in the design, manufacture and delivery of data at rest encryption 
products that encrypt and protect data on computer hard drives.

 »  Space News Top 50 Space Companies.

July 2010 »  $477 million IDIQ contract to supply the next generation  
of Blue Force Tracking (BFT-2) equipment to the U.S. Army.  
Initial delivery orders award of $37.2 million.

 »  $10 million award from the National Security Agency (NSA)  
to implement Version 4 of the High Assurance Internet Protocol 
Encryptor Interoperability Specification (HAIPE® IS) on ViaSat 
AltaSec® inline network encryptors.

August 2010 »  $19.5 million award from the Department of Agriculture Rural 
Utilities Service American Reinvestment and Recovery Act  
of 2009 for WildBlue to provide affordable broadband services  
to unserved and rural areas.

septeMber 2010 »  EuroConsult “Strategic Transaction of the Year Award”  
for WildBlue acquisition.

 »  Introduced AltaSec® IPS-250 inline network encryptor (INE),  
the first network encryptor compatible with NSA Cryptographic 
High Value Product Suite B standards.

october 2010 »  Completed demonstrations of 4 Mbps transmit speeds over  
Ku-band in operational missions for broadband ISR platforms for 
U.S. Special Operations Command forces.

 »  Acquired SKYLinkSM airborne broadband service from ARINC Inc., 
adding 80 private business jets to our Yonder network.
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december 2010 »  Successful launch of Eutelsat’s 70 Gbps KA-SAT, the first  
satellite to use our transformational high-capacity satellite system 
design, ushering in a new era of competitively-priced satellite-
delivered services.

 »  $13.1 million award for additional ArcLight® mobile broadband 
network satellite services to provide capacity in Afghanistan  
for airborne ISR missions. 

january 2011 »  Received inaugural Defense Security Service “Award of Excellence 
in Counterintelligence.”

 »  Selected by Boeing to provide the ground based beam forming 
(GBBF) system for the MEXSAT satellite system, for Mexican 
national security and civil telecommunications.

february 2011 »  Commenced operational performance testing of our next 
generation SurfBeam® 2 consumer satellite broadband network 
over KA-SAT, in anticipation of start of Eutelsat Tooway™ 
commercial services in June 2011.

 »  Reached a total of over 150 cumulative government ArcLight® 
satellite broadband ISR and Global C2 terminals.

 »  $6.8 million limited production order for Multifunctional 
Information Distribution System Joint Tactical Radio System  
(MIDS JTRS) terminals for the U.S. government.

 »  Received award of over $70 million for additional BFT-2 
production terminals and related services, bringing total awards 
for BFT-2 terminals to over $120 million.

march 2011 »  Agreement with Asia Broadcast Satellite for exclusive access  
to Ka-band satellite capacity available in the Afghanistan region.

 »  Agreement with Star Satellite Communications Company,  
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Al Yah Satellite Communications 
Company PrJSC (Yahsat), to create seamless roaming for global 
mobile Ka-band broadband services in the U.S. and Middle East.

 »  Definitive agreement to provide Ka-band satellite in-flight 
broadband equipment and service to JetBlue Airways, including 
an initial $30 million equipment and services order.



FINANCIAL  
HIGHLIGHTS

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, April 3,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010 2009

Consolidated statement of inCome data          
Total revenues  $ 802,206 $ 688,080  $ 628,179
Operating expenses:           

Cost of revenues   550,568  475,356   446,824
Selling, general and administrative   164,265  132,895   98,624
Independent research and development   28,711  27,325   29,622
Amortization of acquired intangible assets   19,409  9,494   8,822

Income from operations   39,253  43,010   44,287
Interest income (expense), net   (2,831)  (6,733)   954

Income before income taxes   36,422  36,277   45,241
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes   (2)  5,438   6,794

Net income   36,424  30,839   38,447
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest,  

net of tax   
 

309  
 

(297
 
)   

 
116

Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  $ 36,115 $ 31,136  $ 38,331

Basic net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  
common stockholders

  
$

 
0.88

  
$

 
0.94

 
 

 
$

 
1.25

Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  
common stockholders

  
$

 
0.84

  
$

 
0.89

 
 

 
$

 
1.20

Shares used in computing basic net income per share   40,858  33,020   30,772

Shares used in computing diluted net income per share   43,059  34,839   31,884

an itemiZed ReConCiliation BetWeen net inCome attRiBUtaBle  
to Viasat, inC. and adJUsted eBitda is as folloWs

GAAP net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  $ 36,115  $  31,136   $ 38,331
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes  (2)  5,438    6,794 
Interest expense (income), net   2,831  6,733    (954)
Depreciation and amortization  103,053  46,955    28,610 
Stock-based compensation expense  17,440  12,212    9,837 
Acquisition related expenses  1,379  11,374   —

Adjusted EBITDA  160,816  113,848    82,618 

Consolidated BalanCe sheet data           
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments  $ 40,490 $ 89,631  $ 63,491
Working capital  167,457  214,541   203,390
Total assets  1,405,748  1,293,552   622,942
Other long-term debt  61,946  60,000   —
Senior Notes due 2016, net  272,296  271,801   —
Other liabilities  23,842  24,395   24,718
Total ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity  840,125  753,005   458,748| 
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25 YeaRs of  
aChIevemenT

From day one, the ViaSat 
environment has been business-
oriented, but with the attractive 
attributes of the best universities. 
Co-workers who are like-minded,  
yet independent. Personal freedom, 
and responsibility. Focused on 
competition and winning. With 
challenging work and great rewards.

52593_B.indd   28 6/22/11   7:45 PM
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Selected Financial data

The following table provides our selected financial information for each of the fiscal years in the five-year period ended  
April 1, 2011. The data as of and for each of the fiscal years in the five-year period ended April 1, 2011 have been derived 
from our audited consolidated financial statements. You should consider the financial statement data provided below in 
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consol-
idated financial statements and notes which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, April 3, March 28, March 30,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Consolidated statement of inCome data                
Total revenues $ 802,206 $ 688,080  $ 628,179  $ 574,650  $ 516,566 
Operating expenses:                  

Cost of revenues   550,568  475,356   446,824   413,520   380,092 
Selling, general and administrative   164,265  132,895   98,624   76,365   69,896 
Independent research and development   28,711  27,325   29,622   32,273   21,631 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets   19,409  9,494   8,822   9,562   9,502 

Income from operations   39,253  43,010   44,287   42,930   35,445 

Interest income (expense), net   (2,831)  (6,733)   954   5,155   1,741 

Income before income taxes   36,422  36,277   45,241   48,085   37,186 
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes   (2)  5,438   6,794   13,521   6,755 

Net income   36,424  30,839   38,447   34,564   30,431 

Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling 
interest, net of tax

   
309

   
(297

 
)

   
116

   
1,051

   
265

 

Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  $ 36,115 $ 31,136  $ 38,331  $ 33,513  $ 30,166 

Basic net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. 
common stockholders

  
$

 
0.88

  
$

 
0.94

   
$

 
1.25

  
$

 
1.11

  
$

 
1.06

 

Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. 
common stockholders

  
$

 
0.84

  
$

 
0.89

   
$

 
1.20

  
$

 
1.04

  
$

 
0.98

 

Shares used in computing basic net income per share   40,858  33,020   30,772   30,232   28,589 

Shares used in computing diluted net income per share   43,059  34,839   31,884   32,224   30,893 

Consolidated BalanCe sheet data                  

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments  $ 40,490 $ 89,631  $ 63,491  $ 125,219  $ 103,392 

Working capital  167,457  214,541   203,390   248,251   187,406 

Total assets  1,405,748  1,293,552   622,942   551,094   483,939 

Other long-term debt  61,946  60,000   —   —   — 

Senior Notes due 2016, net  272,296  271,801   —   —   — 

Other liabilities  23,842  24,395   24,718   17,290   13,273 

Total ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity  840,125  753,005   458,748   404,140   348,795 

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of WildBlue Holding, Inc. (WildBlue) from the date of 
acquisition during December 2009. In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, we recorded approximately $220.8 million and $63.4 
million, respectively, in revenue and $17.4 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of net income with respect to the WildBlue 
business in the consolidated statements of operations. Net income for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 included $0.9 million 
and $8.7 million, respectively, in transaction-related expenses related to the acquisition of Stonewood Group Limited 
(Stonewood) in fiscal year 2011 and WildBlue in fiscal year 2010. In addition, net income for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 
included $0.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively, in certain post-acquisition charges recorded for restructuring costs for 
terminated employees related to the acquisition of WildBlue. These transaction-related expenses and certain post-acquisi-
tion charges were recorded in accordance with the authoritative guidance for business combinations Accounting Standards 
Codification 805 (ASC 805) adopted on April 4, 2009.
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9MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS

comPany overview
We are a leading provider of advanced satellite and wireless communications and secure networking systems, products and 
services. We have leveraged our success developing complex satellite communication systems and equipment for the U.S. 
government and select commercial customers to develop end-to-end satellite network solutions for a wide array of applica-
tions and customers. Our product and systems offerings are often linked through common underlying technologies, 
 customer applications and market relationships. We believe that our portfolio of products, combined with our ability to 
effectively cross-deploy technologies between government and commercial segments and across different geographic 
 markets, provides us with a strong foundation to sustain and enhance our leadership in advanced communications and 
networking technologies. Our customers, including the U.S. government, leading aerospace and defense prime contractors, 
network integrators and communications service providers, rely on our solutions to meet their complex communications 
and networking requirements. In addition, following our acquisition of WildBlue, we are a leading provider of satellite 
 broadband internet services in the United States.

ViaSat operates in three segments: government systems, commercial networks and satellite services.

Government SyStemS 
Our government systems segment develops and produces network-centric IP-based secure government communications 
systems, products and solutions, which are designed to enable the collection and dissemination of secure real-time digital 
information between command centers, communications nodes and air defense systems. Customers of our government 
systems segment include tactical armed forces, public safety first-responders and remote government employees.

The primary products and services of our government systems segment include:

 » Government satellite communication systems, including an array of portable and fixed broadband modems, terminals, 
network access control systems and antenna systems using a range of satellite frequency bands for line-of-sight and 
beyond-line-of-sight ISR and C2 missions, satellite networking services, as well as products designed for manpacks, 
 aircraft, UAVs, seagoing vessels, ground mobile vehicles and fixed applications.

 » Information assurance products that enable military and government users to communicate information securely over 
networks, and that secure data stored on computers and storage devices.

 » Tactical data links, including MIDS terminals for military fighter jets and their successor, MIDS-JTRS terminals, 
 “disposable” weapon data links and portable small tactical terminals.

On July 8, 2010, we completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of the parent company of Stonewood, a privately 
held company registered in England and Wales (see Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements). Stonewood is a leader 
in the design, manufacture and delivery of data at rest encryption products and services. In connection with the acquisi-
tion, we paid approximately $14.2 million in cash and issued approximately 144,962 shares of ViaSat common stock to for-
mer Stonewood stockholders. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the consolidated financial 
statements include the operating results of Stonewood from the date of acquisition in our government systems segment.

commercial net workS
Our commercial networks segment develops and produces a variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communication 
 systems and ground networking equipment and products that address five key market segments: consumer, enterprise, 
 in-flight, maritime and ground mobile applications. These communication systems, networking equipment and products are 
generally developed through a combination of customer and discretionary internal research and development funding.

Our satellite communication systems and ground networking equipment and products cater to a wide range of domestic 
and international commercial customers and include:

 » Consumer broadband, including next-generation satellite network infrastructure and ground terminals to access  
high capacity satellites.

 » Antenna systems for terrestrial and satellite applications, specializing in geospatial imagery, mobile satellite 
communication, Ka-band gateways, and other multi-band antennas.

 » Mobile broadband satellite communication systems, designed for use in aircraft, seagoing vessels and high-speed trains.

 » Enterprise VSAT networks and products, designed to provide enterprises with broadband access to the internet or 
private networks.

 » Satellite networking development programs, including specialized design and technology services covering all aspects of 
satellite communication system architecture and technology.
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

Satellite ServiceS
Our satellite services segment complements our government systems and commercial networks segments by providing 
wholesale and retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States via our distribution and capacity 
 agreements, as well as managed network services for the satellite communication systems of our consumer, enterprise and 
mobile broadband customers.

The primary services offered by our satellite services segment comprise:

 » Wholesale and retail broadband services, comprised of WildBlue service, which provides two-way satellite-based 
 broadband internet access to consumers and small businesses in the United States.

 » Our Yonder® worldwide mobile broadband services, comprised of global network management services for customers 
who use our ArcLight®-based mobile satellite systems.

On December 15, 2009, we acquired WildBlue, a leading Ka-band satellite broadband internet service provider. In connec-
tion with the acquisition, we paid approximately $442.7 million in cash and issued approximately 4.29 million shares of 
ViaSat common stock to WildBlue equity and debt holders (see Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements). The acqui-
sition was accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include the operating results 
of WildBlue from the date of acquisition in our satellite services segment.

SourceS oF revenueS
With respect to our government systems and commercial networks segments, to date, our ability to grow and maintain our 
revenues has depended on our ability to identify and target markets where the customer places a high priority on the tech-
nology solution, and our ability to obtain additional sizable contract awards. Due to the nature of this process, it is difficult 
to predict the probability and timing of obtaining awards in these markets.

Our products in these segments are provided primarily through three types of contracts: fixed-price, time-and-materials 
and cost-reimbursement contracts. Fixed-price contracts, which require us to provide products and services under a 
contract at a specified price, comprised approximately 95% of our total revenues for fiscal year 2011, 91% of our total 
revenues for fiscal year 2010 and 86% of our total revenues for fiscal year 2009. The remainder of our revenue in these 
segments for such periods was derived from cost-reimbursement contracts (under which we are reimbursed for all actual 
costs incurred in performing the contract to the extent such costs are within the contract ceiling and allowable under the 
terms of the contract, plus a fee or profit) and from time-and-materials contracts (which reimburse us for the number of 
labor hours expended at an established hourly rate negotiated in the contract, plus the cost of materials utilized in providing 
such products or services).

Historically, a significant portion of our revenues has been derived from customer contracts that include the research and 
development of products. The research and development efforts are conducted in direct response to the customer’s spe-
cific requirements and, accordingly, expenditures related to such efforts are included in cost of sales when incurred and 
the related funding (which includes a profit component) is included in revenues. Revenues for our funded research and 
development from our customer contracts were approximately $210.6 million or 26% of our total revenues during fiscal year 
2011, $92.9 million or 14% of our total revenues during fiscal year 2010, and $126.7 million or 20% of our total revenues 
during fiscal year 2009.

We also incur independent research and development (IR&D) expenses, which are not directly funded by a third party. 
IR&D expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses, supplies, prototype materials, testing 
and certification related to research and development programs. IR&D expenses were approximately 4% of total revenues 
during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 and 5% of total revenues during fiscal year 2009. As a government contractor, we are 
able to recover a portion of our IR&D expenses pursuant to our government contracts.

Our satellite services segment revenues are primarily derived from our WildBlue business (which provides wholesale and 
retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States) and our managed network services which comple-
ment both our government systems and commercial networks segments by supporting the satellite communication systems 
of our consumer enterprise and mobile broadband customers. Our WildBlue retail satellite-based broadband internet ser-
vices (which have been included in our results of operations since our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009) were 
approximately 16% of total revenues during fiscal year 2011 and immaterial for fiscal year 2010.

critical accountinG PolicieS and eStimateS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated finan-
cial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We consider the 
policies discussed below to be critical to an understanding of our financial statements because their application places the 
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most significant demands on management’s judgment, with financial reporting results relying on estimation about the effect 
of matters that are inherently uncertain. We describe the specific risks for these critical accounting policies in the following 
paragraphs. For all of these policies, we caution that future events rarely develop exactly as forecast, and even the best 
estimates routinely require adjustment.

revenue recoGnition
A substantial portion of our revenues is derived from long-term contracts requiring development and delivery of complex 
equipment built to customer specifications. Sales related to these contracts are accounted for under the authoritative guid-
ance for the percentage-of-completion method of accounting (ASC 605-35). Sales and earnings under these contracts are 
recorded either based on the ratio of actual costs incurred to date to total estimated costs expected to be incurred related 
to the contract or as products are shipped under the units-of-delivery method.

The percentage-of-completion method of accounting requires management to estimate the profit margin for each individual 
contract and to apply that profit margin on a uniform basis as sales are recorded under the contract. The estimation of 
profit margins requires management to make projections of the total sales to be generated and the total costs that will be 
incurred under a contract. These projections require management to make numerous assumptions and estimates relating 
to items such as the complexity of design and related development costs, performance of subcontractors, availability and 
cost of materials, labor productivity and cost, overhead and capital costs, and manufacturing efficiency. These contracts 
often include purchase options for additional quantities and customer change orders for additional or revised product func-
tionality. Purchase options and change orders are accounted for either as an integral part of the original contract or sepa-
rately depending upon the nature and value of the item. For contract claims or similar items, we apply judgment in 
estimating the amounts and assessing the potential for realization. These amounts are only included in contract value when 
they can be reliably estimated and realization is considered probable. Anticipated losses on contracts are recognized in full 
in the period in which losses become probable and estimable. During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, we recorded 
losses of approximately $12.1 million, $9.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, related to loss contracts.

Assuming the initial estimates of sales and costs under a contract are accurate, the percentage-of-completion method 
results in the profit margin being recorded evenly as revenue is recognized under the contract. Changes in these underlying 
estimates due to revisions in sales and future cost estimates or the exercise of contract options may result in profit margins 
being recognized unevenly over a contract as such changes are accounted for on a cumulative basis in the period esti-
mates are revised. We believe we have established appropriate systems and processes to enable us to reasonably estimate 
future cost on our programs through regular quarterly evaluations of contract costs, scheduling and technical matters by 
business unit personnel and management. Historically, in the aggregate, we have not experienced significant deviations in 
actual costs from estimated program costs, and when deviations that result in significant adjustments arise, we disclose the 
related impact in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. However, these 
estimates require significant management judgment and a significant change in future cost estimates on one or more pro-
grams could have a material effect on our results of operations. A one percent variance in our future cost estimates on 
open fixed-price contracts as of April 1, 2011 would change our income before income taxes by approximately $0.5 million.

We also derive a substantial portion of our revenues from contracts and purchase orders where revenue is recorded on 
delivery of products or performance of services in accordance with the authoritative guidance for revenue recognition (ASC 
605). Under this standard, we recognize revenue when an arrangement exists, prices are fixed and determinable, 
 collectability is reasonably assured and the goods or services have been delivered.

We also enter into certain leasing arrangements with customers and evaluate the contracts in accordance with the authori-
tative guidance for leases (ASC 840). Our accounting for equipment leases involves specific determinations under the 
authoritative guidance, which often involve complex provisions and significant judgments. In accordance with the authorita-
tive guidance for leases, we classify the transactions as sales type or operating leases based on (1) review for transfers of 
ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease term, (2) review of the lease terms to determine if it con-
tains an option to purchase the leased property for a price which is sufficiently lower than the expected fair value of the 
property at the date of the option, (3) review of the lease term to determine if it is equal to or greater than 75% of the eco-
nomic life of the equipment and (4) review of the present value of the minimum lease payments to determine if they are 
equal to or greater than 90% of the fair market value of the equipment at the inception of the lease. Additionally, we con-
sider the cancelability of the contract and any related uncertainty of collections or risk in recoverability of the lease invest-
ment at lease inception. Revenue from sales type leases is recognized at the inception of the lease or when the equipment 
has been delivered and installed at the customer site, if installation is required. Revenues from equipment rentals under 
operating leases are recognized as earned over the lease term, which is generally on a straight-line basis.

When a sale involves multiple elements, such as sales of products that include services, the entire fee from the arrange-
ment is allocated to each respective element based on its relative fair value in accordance with the authoritative guidance 
for accounting for multiple element revenue arrangements (ASC 605-25), and recognized when the applicable revenue rec-
ognition criteria for each element have been met. The amount of product and service revenue recognized is impacted by 
our judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and, if so, whether sufficient objective and reliable 
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

evidence of fair value exists for those elements. Changes to the elements in an arrangement and our ability to establish 
 evidence for those elements could affect the timing of revenue recognition.

Collections in excess of revenues and deferred revenues represent cash collected from customers in advance of revenue 
recognition and are recorded in accrued liabilities for obligations within the next twelve months. Deferred revenues 
 extending beyond the twelve months are recorded within other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. 

allowance For doubtFul accountS
We make estimates of the collectability of our accounts receivable based on historical bad debts, customer creditworthi-
ness and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Historically, our 
bad debt allowances have been minimal primarily because a significant portion of our sales has been to the U.S. govern-
ment or is related to our satellite service commercial business, which we bill and collect in advance. Our accounts receiv-
able balance was $191.9 million, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million, as of April 1, 2011, and our 
accounts receivable balance was $176.4 million, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million, as of April 2, 2010.

warrant y reServeS
We provide limited warranties on our products for periods of up to five years. We record a liability for our warranty obliga-
tions when we ship the products or they are included in long-term construction contracts based upon an estimate of 
expected warranty costs. Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as a current liability. For 
mature products, we estimate the warranty costs based on historical experience with the particular product. For newer 
products that do not have a history of warranty costs, we base our estimates on our experience with the technology 
involved and the types of failures that may occur. It is possible that our underlying assumptions will not reflect the actual 
experience, and in that case, we will make future adjustments to the recorded warranty obligation.

Goodwill
We account for our goodwill under the authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets (ASC 350). The 
authoritative guidance for the goodwill impairment model is a two-step process. First, it requires a comparison of the book 
value of net assets to the fair value of the reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them. Reporting units within our 
government systems, commercial networks and satellite services segments have goodwill assigned to them. If the fair value 
is determined to be less than book value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment. In this 
process, a fair value for goodwill is estimated, based in part on the fair value of the reporting unit used in the first step, and 
is compared to its carrying value. The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value, if any, represents the amount of good-
will impairment. We test goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter every fiscal year and when an event occurs or 
circumstances change such that it is reasonably possible that an impairment may exist.

We estimate the fair values of the reporting units using discounted cash flows and other indicators of fair value such as 
market comparable transactions. We base the forecast of future cash flows on our best estimate of the future revenues and 
operating costs, which we derive primarily from existing firm orders, expected future orders, contracts with suppliers, labor 
agreements and general market conditions. Changes in these forecasts could cause a particular reporting unit to either 
pass or fail the first step in the authoritative guidance related to the goodwill impairment model, which could significantly 
influence whether a goodwill impairment needs to be recorded. We adjust the cash flow forecasts by an appropriate dis-
count rate derived from our market capitalization plus a suitable control premium at the date of evaluation. In applying the 
first step, which is identification of any impairment of goodwill, no impairment of goodwill has resulted.

ProPert y, equiPment and SatelliteS
Equipment, computers and software, furniture and fixtures, and our ViaSat-1 satellite and related gateway and networking 
equipment under construction are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Costs are capitalized as incurred and 
for our satellite include construction, launch and insurance. Satellite construction costs, including launch services and 
insurance, are generally procured under long-term contracts that provide for payments by us over the contract periods. 
Also, we are constructing gateway facilities, network operations systems and other assets to support the satellite under con-
struction and these construction costs are capitalized as incurred. Interest expense is capitalized on the carrying value of 
the satellite and related gateway and networking equipment during the construction period. Satellite construction and 
launch services costs are capitalized to reflect progress toward completion, which typically coincides with contract mile-
stone payment schedules. Insurance premiums related to the satellite launch and subsequent in-orbit testing are capital-
ized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the satellite. Performance incentives payable in future periods are 
dependent on the continued satisfactory performance of the satellite in service.

As a result of the acquisition of WildBlue on December 15, 2009, we acquired the WildBlue-1 satellite (which had been 
placed into service in March 2007) and an exclusive prepaid lifetime capital lease of Ka-band capacity on Telesat Canada’s 
Anik F2 satellite (which had been placed into service in April 2005) and related gateway and networking equipment on 
both satellites. The acquired assets also included the indoor and outdoor customer premise equipment (CPE) units leased 
to subscribers under WildBlue’s retail leasing program.
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Occasionally, we may enter into capital lease arrangements for various machinery, equipment, computer-related equipment, 
software, furniture or fixtures. As of April 1, 2011, assets under capital lease totaled approximately $3.1 million. We had no 
material capital lease arrangements as of April 2, 2010. We record amortization of assets leased under capital lease 
arrangements within depreciation expense.

imPairment oF lonG-lived aSSetS (ProPert y, equiPment and SatelliteS, and other aSSetS)
In accordance with the authoritative guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets (ASC 360), we assess poten-
tial impairments to our long-lived assets, including property, equipment and satellites and other assets, when there is evi-
dence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We recognize an 
impairment loss when the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset (or group of assets) are less than 
the asset’s carrying value. Any required impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
value exceeds its fair value, and would be recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and charged to 
results of operations. No material impairments were recorded by us for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

income ta xeS and valuation allowance on deFerred ta x aSSetS
Management evaluates the realizability of our deferred tax assets and assesses the need for a valuation allowance on a 
quarterly basis. In accordance with the authoritative guidance for income taxes (ASC 740), net deferred tax assets are 
reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on all the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the 
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Our valuation allowance against deferred tax assets decreased from $13.1 million at 
April 2, 2010 to $12.7 million at April 1, 2011. The valuation allowance primarily relates to state net operating loss carryfor-
wards and research credit carryforwards available to reduce state income taxes.

Accruals for uncertain tax positions are provided for in accordance with the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncer-
tainty in income taxes (ASC 740). Under the authoritative guidance, we may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax 
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, 
based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position 
should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate 
settlement. The authoritative guidance addresses the derecognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of 
 current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions, 
and income tax disclosures.

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. In the ordinary course of business 
there are calculations and transactions where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. In addition, changes in tax laws 
and regulations as well as adverse judicial rulings could adversely affect the income tax provision. We believe we have 
 adequately provided for income tax issues not yet resolved with federal, state and foreign tax authorities. However, if these 
provided amounts prove to be more than what is necessary, the reversal of the reserves would result in tax benefits being 
recognized in the period in which we determine that provision for the liabilities is no longer necessary. If an ultimate tax 
assessment exceeds our estimate of tax liabilities, an additional charge to expense would result.

reSultS oF oPerationS
The following table presents, as a percentage of total revenues, income statement data for the periods indicated.

April 1, April 2, April 3,
Fiscal Years Ended 2011 2010 2009

Revenues: 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Product revenues 65.3  84.9  94.8  
Service revenues 34.7  15.1  5.2  

Operating expenses:       
Cost of product revenues 48.6  59.3  67.6  
Cost of service revenues 20.0  9.7  3.5  
Selling, general and administrative 20.5  19.3  15.7  
Independent research and development 3.6  4.0  4.7  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 2.4  1.4  1.4  

Income from operations 4.9  6.3  7.1  
Income before income taxes 4.5  5.3  7.2  
Provision for income taxes 0.0  0.8  1.1  
Net income 4.5  4.5  6.1  
Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc. 4.5  4.5  6.1  
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ManageMent’s Discussion anD analysis of  
financial conDition anD Results of opeRations (CONt.)

Fiscal Year 2011 compared to Fiscal Year 2010

Product Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Product revenues $ 523.9 $ 584.1  $ (60.1) (10.3)%
Percentage of total revenues  65.3%  84.9%

Product revenues decreased from $584.1 million to $523.9 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 
2010. the product revenue decline was primarily due to lower product sales in our commercial networks segment related 
to enterprise VSAt networks and products of $29.0 million and consumer broadband products of $29.0 million. Our gov-
ernment systems segment also experienced product revenue reductions as tactical data link products revenues decreased 
by $23.2 million and information assurance products revenues decreased by $7.0 million. these decreases were offset by 
higher product sales of $15.5 million in antenna systems products, $10.7 million in government satellite communication 
systems and $6.1 million in next-generation broadband equipment development programs.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, based on recent events, including communications with the DCMA, changes in the 
regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of current government audits, we recorded an 
additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for our estimate of potential refunds to customers for potential cost 
adjustments on several multi-year U.S. government cost reimbursable contracts, which resulted in a decrease to revenues 
and earnings. For additional information, see “Risk Factors — Our Business Could Be Adversely Affected by a Negative 
Audit by the U.S. Government” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Service Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Service revenues $ 278.3 $ 104.0  $ 174.3 167.6%
Percentage of total revenues  34.7%  15.1%

 

Service revenues increased from $104.0 million to $278.3 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 
2010 primarily due to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which contributed an increase in service revenues of 
$152.8 million in fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 2010. the remaining service revenue increases were pri-
marily driven by growth in government satellite communication systems and mobile broadband services of $16.0 million.

Cost of Product Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cost of product revenues $ 389.9 $ 408.5  $ (18.6) (4.5)%
Percentage of product revenues  74.4%  69.9%

Cost of product revenues decreased from $408.5 million to $389.9 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal 
year 2010. On a constant margin basis the decreased revenues caused a $38.6 million reduction in cost of product reve-
nues. this decrease was offset by an increase in cost of product revenues of $8.5 million due to an additional program for-
ward loss in our government systems segment for a government satellite communication program recorded in the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2011, as discussed below, and an additional increase in cost of product revenues of $11.5 million 
mainly as a result of product cost increases from lower margin development programs in our consumer broadband, infor-
mation assurance and next-generation tactical datalink product areas. Cost of product revenues may fluctuate in future 
periods depending on the mix of products sold, competition, new product introduction costs and other factors.

In June 2010, we performed extensive integration testing of numerous system components that had been separately devel-
oped as part of a government satellite communication program. As a result of this testing and subsequent internal reviews 
and analyses, we determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the program requirements 
and specifications and to prepare for a scheduled customer test in our fiscal second quarter. this additional rework and 
engineering effort resulted in a substantial increase in estimated labor and material costs to complete the program. 
Accordingly, during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, we recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million related to 
this estimate of program costs. While we believe the additional forward loss is adequate to cover known risks to date and 
that steps taken to improve the program performance will be effective, the program is ongoing and our efforts and the end 
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results must be satisfactory to the customer. We believe that our estimate of costs to complete the program is appropriate 
based on known information, however, additional future losses could be required.

Cost of Service Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cost of service revenues $ 160.6 $ 66.8 $ 93.8 140.3%
Percentage of service revenues  57.7%  64.3%

Cost of service revenues increased from $66.8 million to $160.6 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal 
year 2010 primarily due to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which contributed to an increase of approxi-
mately $83.9 million. The remainder of the cost of service revenues growth was due to an $11.5 million increase from our 
government satellite communication systems and mobile broadband services driven by service revenues increases. During 
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, we also recorded a benefit to cost of service revenues of $5.2 million related to a 
WildBlue satellite capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment liabilities related thereto.

Cost of service revenues may fluctuate in future periods depending on the mix of services provided, competition, new ser-
vice introduction costs and other factors.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Selling, general and administrative $ 164.3 $ 132.9  $ 31.4 23.6%
Percentage of total revenues  20.5%  19.3%

The increase in selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses of $31.4 million during fiscal year 2011 compared to 
fiscal prior year 2010 was primarily due to our acquisition of WildBlue, which contributed an additional $30.0 million in 
SG&A expenses, including $8.7 million in transaction-related expenses incurred in connection with the acquisition. Our 
other SG&A expenses increased $10.7 million primarily due to additional support costs resulting from growth in our busi-
ness. SG&A expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and expenses for business development, marketing and sales, 
bid and proposal, facilities, finance, contract administration and general management.

Independent Research and Development

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Independent research and development $ 28.7 $ 27.3  $ 1.4 5.1%
Percentage of total revenues  3.6%  4.0%

The increase in IR&D expenses of approximately $1.4 million reflects a year-over-year increase in our commercial networks 
segment of $2.7 million principally related to next-generation satellite communication systems, offset by a decrease in our 
government systems segment of approximately $1.6 million primarily due to next-generation military satellite communication 
systems development programs.
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ManageMent’s Discussion anD analysis of  
financial conDition anD Results of opeRations (CONt.)

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets. We amortize our acquired intangible assets from prior acquisitions over their 
estimated useful lives ranging from eight months to ten years. the increase in amortization of approximately $9.9 million in 
fiscal year 2011 when compared to last fiscal year was the result of our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which 
contributed an increase of $9.2 million, and our acquisition of Stonewood in July 2010, which contributed an increase of 
$1.6 million. these increases were slightly offset by a decrease in amortization as certain acquired technology and other 
intangibles in our commercial networks and government systems segments became fully amortized during fiscal year 2011. 
Current and expected amortization expense for acquired intangible assets for each of the following periods is as follows:

(In thousands) Amortization

Expected for fiscal year 2012 $ 18,735

Expected for fiscal year 2013 15,623

Expected for fiscal year 2014 13,879

Expected for fiscal year 2015 13,803

Expected for fiscal year 2016 10,203

thereafter 9,646

$ 81,889

Interest Income. the decrease in interest income of $0.3 million year-over-year was primarily due to lower interest rates on 
our investments and lower average invested cash balances during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 2010.

Interest Expense. the decrease in interest expense of $4.2 million year-over-year was primarily due to higher capitalized 
interest associated with our ViaSat-1 satellite, related gateway and networking equipment, and other assets under 
construction. For fiscal years 2011 and 2010, we capitalized interest expense of approximately $28.3 million and $8.8 
million, respectively. Interest expense incurred during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 relates to the 8.875% Senior Notes 
due 2016 (the Notes), which were issued during the third quarter of fiscal year 2010, and the Company’s revolving credit 
facility (the Credit Facility).

(Benefit from) Provision for Income Taxes. the decrease in the effective income tax rate from 15.0% in fiscal year 2010 
compared to zero in fiscal year 2011 was primarily due to increased federal tax credits in fiscal year 2011, as the federal 
research credit in fiscal year 2011 included fifteen months of the credit compared to only nine months in fiscal year 2010 
as a result of the December 2010 reinstatement of the credit retroactively from January 1, 2010.

Our Segment reSultS FiScal Year 2011 cOmpared tO FiScal Year 2010

GOVErNmENt SyStEmS SEGmENt

Revenues

Fiscal years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

revenues $ 384.1 $ 385.2 $ (1.0) (0.3)%

Our government systems segment experienced a slight revenue decrease in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010 
primarily attributable to tactical data link revenue reductions of $20.2 million and information assurance products of $6.1 
million, offset by continued growth in our government satellite communication systems revenues of $23.2 million.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, based on recent events, including communications with the DCmA, changes in the 
regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of current government audits, we recorded an 
additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for our estimate of potential refunds to customers for potential cost 
adjustments on several multi-year U.S. government cost reimbursable contracts, which resulted in a decrease to revenues 
and earnings. For additional information, see “risk Factors — Our Business Could Be Adversely Affected by a Negative 
Audit by the U.S. Government” in our most recent Annual report on Form 10-K.
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Segment Operating Profit

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating profit $ 29.9  $ 55.7  $ (25.8) (46.4)%
Percentage of segment revenues  7.8%  14.5%

The decrease in our government systems segment operating profit of $25.8 million year-over-year was primarily due to 
decreased revenues, including the $5.0 million cost reimbursable contracts revenue reserve recorded in the fourth quarter 
of fiscal year 2011 discussed above. Additionally, the segment experienced lower product contributions, mainly related to 
the $8.5 million forward loss recorded on a government satellite communication program in the first quarter of fiscal year 
2011 as discussed below, as well as an increase in selling, support and new business proposal costs of $15.0 million.

In June 2010, we performed extensive integration testing of numerous system components that had been separately devel-
oped as part of a government satellite communication program. As a result of this testing and subsequent internal reviews 
and analyses, we determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the program requirements 
and specifications and to prepare for a scheduled customer test in our fiscal second quarter. This additional rework and 
engineering effort resulted in a substantial increase in estimated labor and material costs to complete the program. 
Accordingly, during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million related to this 
estimate of program costs. While we believe the additional forward loss is adequate to cover known risks to date and that 
steps taken to improve the program performance will be effective, the program is ongoing and our efforts and the end 
results must be satisfactory to the customer. We believe that our estimate of costs to complete the program is appropriate 
based on known information, however, additional future losses could be required.

COMMERCIAL NETWORKS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenues $ 183.1 $ 227.1 $ (44.0) (19.4)%

The decrease of approximately $44.0 million in our commercial networks segment revenue in fiscal year 2011 compared to 
fiscal year 2010 was attributable to a decrease of $30.5 million in consumer broadband products and services and $27.2 mil-
lion in enterprise VSAT networks products and services. These decreases were offset by increases in revenues of $17.5 million 
in antenna systems products and services and $6.1 million in next generation broadband equipment development programs.

Segment Operating (Loss) Profit

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating (loss) profit $ (9.5) $ 6.1  $ (15.6) (255.7)%
Percentage of segment revenues  (5.2)%  2.7%

Our commercial networks segment results yielded an operating loss in fiscal year 2011 compared to an operating profit in 
fiscal year 2010. This change was primarily due to lower earnings contributions of approximately $16.1 million due to the 
lower revenues and an increase in IR&D costs of $2.7 million, which were offset by a decrease in selling, support and new 
business proposal costs of approximately $3.2 million.

SATELLITE SERVICES SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenues $ 235.0 $ 75.8 $ 159.1 209.9%

The increase of approximately $159.1 million in satellite services segment revenue in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal 
year 2010 was attributable to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which contributed an additional $157.4 million 
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

in total revenue. The remainder of the increase in our satellite services segment was primarily driven by growth in our 
mobile broadband services revenues.

Segment Operating Profit (Loss)

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating profit (loss) $ 38.2 $ (9.3) $ 47.5 510.8 %
Percentage of segment revenues  16.3 %  (12.3)%

Our satellite services segment generated an operating profit in fiscal year 2011 compared to an operating loss in fiscal 
year 2010. This change was primarily attributable to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 and related year-
over-year profitability growth. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, we also recorded a benefit to cost of service 
revenues of $5.2 million related to a WildBlue satellite capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment 
liabilities related thereto.

fisCal Year 2010 Compared to fisCal Year 2009

Product Revenues

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Product revenues $ 584.1  $ 595.3  $ (11.3) (1.9)%
Percentage of total revenues  84.9 %  94.8%

Product revenues decreased from $595.3 million to $584.1 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 
2009. The decrease in product revenues was primarily due to lower product sales of $15.8 million in information assur-
ance products, $14.7 million in consumer broadband products, $11.7 million in mobile broadband satellite communica-
tions systems products and $5.1 million in tactical data link products, offset by higher product sales of $13.7 million in 
enterprise VSAT networks and products, $10.7 million in government satellite communication systems and $9.3 million 
in antenna systems products.

Service Revenues

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Service revenues $ 104.0  $ 32.8  $ 71.2 216.7%
Percentage of total revenues  15.1 %  5.2%

Service revenues increased from $32.8 million to $104.0 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 
2009 primarily due to the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which contributed $62.5 million of service revenues 
in fiscal year 2010. The remainder of the service revenue increase was primarily driven by growth in our mobile broadband 
service revenues and approximately $5.2 million from our government satellite communication systems service sales.

Cost of Product Revenues

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cost of product revenues $ 408.5  $ 424.6  $ (16.1) (3.8)%
Percentage of product revenues  69.9 %  71.3%

Our cost of product revenues decreased from $424.6 million to $408.5 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to 
fiscal year 2009 primarily due to the decreased product revenues, which caused a decrease of approximately $8.0 million 
in cost of product revenues. We also experienced improved product margins resulting in a further decrease in cost of prod-
uct revenues of approximately $8.1 million. This improvement in margin was primarily due to product cost reductions in 
information assurance products, consumer broadband programs and enterprise VSAT networks in fiscal year 2010 com-
pared to fiscal year 2009.
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Cost of Service Revenues

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cost of service revenues $ 66.8  $ 22.2  $ 44.6 201.0%
Percentage of service revenues  64.3 %  67.6%

Our cost of service revenues increased from $22.2 million to $66.8 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal 
year 2009 primarily due to the service revenue increase from the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009. The remain-
der of the increase in cost of service revenues was primarily driven by service revenue increases from our mobile broad-
band services and our government satellite communication systems services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Selling, general and administrative $ 132.9  $ 98.6  $ 34.3 34.7%
Percentage of total revenues  19.3 %  15.7%

The increase in SG&A expenses of $34.3 million during fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009 was primarily attrib-
utable to $21.0 million in SG&A attributable to WildBlue since the date of acquisition (of which $2.7 million related to certain 
post-acquisition charges recorded for restructuring cost related to terminated employees), $8.7 million in transaction-related 
expenses incurred in connection with the WildBlue acquisition and approximately $3.8 million in new business proposal 
costs for new contract awards. SG&A expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and expenses for business develop-
ment, marketing and sales, bid and proposal, facilities, finance, contract administration and general management.

Independent Research and Development

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Independent research and development $ 27.3  $ 29.6  $ (2.3) (7.8)%
Percentage of total revenues  4.0 %  4.7%

The decrease in IR&D expenses of approximately $2.3 million reflects a year-over-year decrease in the government systems 
segment of $3.4 million, offset by an increase in the commercial networks segment of $1.1 million, for fiscal year 2010 
when compared to fiscal year 2009. The lower IR&D expenses were principally due to a shift of some of our efforts from 
internal development projects to customer-funded development.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets. We amortize our acquired intangible assets from prior acquisitions over their 
estimated useful lives ranging from eight months to ten years. The increase in amortization was primarily due to the amorti-
zation of approximately $3.8 million related to the new intangibles acquired as a result of the WildBlue acquisition in 
December 2009, offset partially by a decrease in amortization due to the fact that certain acquired technology intangibles 
in our commercial networks segment became fully amortized during fiscal year 2010.

Interest Income. The decrease in interest income of $0.8 million year-over-year was primarily due to lower interest rates on 
our investments and lower average invested cash balances during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009.

Interest Expense. The increase in interest expense of $6.8 million year-over-year was primarily due to interest expense on 
the Notes and the Credit Facility. We capitalized $8.8 million of interest expense associated with the construction of our 
ViaSat-1 satellite and other assets currently under construction during fiscal year 2010 compared to no amounts capitalized 
during fiscal year 2009.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate remained flat at 15.0% in fiscal years 2010 and 2009. The provi-
sion for income taxes for fiscal year 2010 reflects the expiration of the federal research and development tax credit on 
December 31, 2009, and the recognition of approximately $3.5 million of previously unrecognized tax benefits due to the 
expiration of the statute of limitations for certain previously filed tax returns.
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

our segment results fisCal Year 2010 Compared to fisCal Year 2009

GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenues $ 385.2 $ 388.7 $ (3.5) (0.9)%

The revenue decrease in our government systems segment was primarily due to lower sales of $16.4 million in information 
assurance products, primarily due to delayed awards caused by the timing of government funding for a number of custom-
ers and $4.3 million in tactical data link products, offset by higher sales of $15.9 million in our government satellite com-
munication systems and higher sales of approximately $1.3 million spread across various other products.

Segment Operating Profit

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating profit $ 55.7  $ 57.0  $ (1.3) (2.3)%
Percentage of segment revenues  14.5 %  14.7%

Our government systems segment operating profit decreased $1.3 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal 
year 2009, primarily due to higher new business proposal costs for new contract awards of approximately $5.5 million off-
set by lower IR&D costs of approximately $3.4 million.

COMMERCIAL NETWORKS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenues $ 227.1 $ 230.8 $ (3.7) (1.6)%

Our commercial networks segment revenue decrease was mainly due to a reduction in product sales of $15.7 million from 
our consumer broadband products, partially due to ViaSat no longer selling equipment to WildBlue as a customer following 
our acquisition of WildBlue and $11.8 million from our mobile broadband satellite communication systems products. These 
decreases were offset by higher product sales of $13.5 million from our enterprise VSAT networks and $9.4 million from 
our antenna systems products.

Segment Operating Profit

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating profit $ 6.1  $ 0.1  $ 6.0 9,568.3%
Percentage of segment revenues  2.7 %  0.0%

Our commercial networks segment operating profit increased in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009, pri-
marily due to product cost decreases resulting in higher product margin contributions of approximately $4.9 million, mainly 
from our consumer broadband products and our enterprise VSAT networks products, and a $3.2 million decrease in sell-
ing, support and new business proposal costs, offset by a $1.1 million increase in IR&D costs.

SATELLITE SERVICES SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenues $ 75.8 $ 8.7 $ 67.1 771.9%

The increase in our satellite services segment revenue in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009 was primarily 
due to the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009, which contributed $63.4 million of revenues in fiscal year 2010. The 
remainder of the revenue increase was primarily driven by growth in our mobile broadband services revenues.
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Segment Operating Loss

 

Fiscal Years Ended April 2, April 3, Dollar Increase Percentage Increase 
(In millions, except percentages) 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Segment operating loss $ (9.3) $ (4.0) $ (5.3) (133.9)%
Percentage of segment revenues  (12.3)%  (45.8)%

The increase in our satellite services segment operating loss of $5.3 million in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal 
year 2009 was primarily due to approximately $8.7 million in transaction-related expenses incurred in connection with the 
WildBlue acquisition and $21.0 million in SG&A expenses incurred by WildBlue during fiscal year 2010 since the date of 
acquisition (of which $2.7 million was related to certain post-acquisition charges recorded for restructuring costs related to 
terminated employees), offset by WildBlue revenues and related product contributions of $25.5 million.

backloG
As reflected in the table below, both funded and firm backlog increased during fiscal year 2011 in the government systems 
segment, despite continuing U.S. government defense budget delays. Funded and firm backlog in the commercial segment 
declined primarily due to expected contract awards being delayed and shifting to the early part of fiscal year 2012.

April 1, April 2,
(In millions) 2011 2010

firm BaCklog

Government Systems segment $ 283.8  $ 217.8 
Commercial Networks segment 216.7  283.5 
Satellite Services segment 28.2  27.5  

Total $ 528.7  $ 528.8 

funded BaCklog   
Government Systems segment $ 235.6  $ 210.0 
Commercial Networks segment 216.7  283.5 
Satellite Services segment 28.2  27.5 

Total $ 480.5  $ 521.0 

The firm backlog does not include contract options. Of the $528.7 million in firm backlog, approximately $357.2 million is 
expected to be delivered in fiscal year 2012, and the balance is expected to be delivered in fiscal year 2013 and thereafter. 
We include in our backlog only those orders for which we have accepted purchase orders.

Our total new awards were $853.5 million, $773.0 million and $736.0 million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respec-
tively. New contract awards in fiscal year 2011 were a record for us.

Backlog is not necessarily indicative of future sales. A majority of our contracts can be terminated at the convenience of the 
customer. Orders are often made substantially in advance of delivery, and our contracts typically provide that orders may be 
terminated with limited or no penalties. In addition, purchase orders may present product specifications that would require 
us to complete additional product development. A failure to develop products meeting such specifications could lead to a 
termination of the related contract.

Firm backlog amounts as presented are comprised of funded and unfunded components. Funded backlog represents the 
sum of contract amounts for which funds have been specifically obligated by customers to contracts. Unfunded backlog 
represents future amounts that customers may obligate over the specified contract performance periods. Our customers 
allocate funds for expenditures on long-term contracts on a periodic basis. Our ability to realize revenues from contracts in 
backlog is dependent upon adequate funding for such contracts. Although we do not control the funding of our contracts, 
our experience indicates that actual contract fundings have ultimately been approximately equal to the aggregate amounts 
of the contracts.
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

liquidity and caPital reSourceS
overview
We have financed our operations to date primarily with cash flows from operations, bank line of credit financing, debt 
financing and equity financing. At April 1, 2011, we had $40.5 million in cash and cash equivalents, $167.5 million in 
 working capital and $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility. At April 2, 2010, 
we had $89.6 million in cash and cash equivalents, $214.5 million in working capital and $60.0 million in principal amount 
of outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility. We invest our cash in excess of current operating requirements in 
short-term, interest-bearing, investment-grade securities.

The general cash needs of our government systems, commercial networks and satellite services segments can vary signifi-
cantly. In our government systems segment, the primary factors determining cash needs tend to be the type and mix of 
contracts in backlog (i.e., product or service, development or production, and timing of payments), and restrictions on the 
timing of cash payments under U.S. government procurement regulations. In our commercial networks segment cash 
needs tend to be driven primarily by the type and mix of contracts in backlog, the nature and quality of customers, and the 
payment terms of customers (including whether advance payments are made or customer financing is required). Other 
 factors affecting the cash needs of these segments include contract duration and program performance. For example, if a 
program is performing well and meeting its contractual requirements, then its cash flow requirements are usually lower. The 
cash needs of our satellite services segment tend to be driven primarily by the timing of payment of capital expenditures 
(e.g., milestones under our satellite construction, timing of network expansion activities and launch contracts), as well as 
the quality of customer, type of contract and payment terms.

To further enhance our liquidity position, we may obtain additional financing, which could consist of debt, convertible debt 
or equity financing from public and/or private capital markets. In March 2010, we filed a universal shelf registration 
 statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for the future sale of an unlimited amount of debt securities, 
common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, warrants and rights. The securities may be offered from time to time, 
separately or together, directly by us, by selling security holders, or through underwriters, dealers or agents at amounts, 
prices, interest rates and other terms to be determined at the time of the offering.

Our future capital requirements will depend upon many factors, including the timing and amount of cash required for the 
ViaSat-1 satellite project pursuant to our contractual commitments, other future broadband satellite projects we may engage 
in, expansion of our research and development and marketing efforts, and the nature and timing of orders. Additionally, we 
will continue to evaluate possible acquisitions of, or investments in complementary businesses, products and technologies 
which may require the use of cash or additional financing. We believe that our current cash balances and net cash 
expected to be provided by operating activities along with availability under our Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our 
anticipated operating requirements for at least the next twelve months.

caSh FlowS
Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal year 2011 was $169.6 million compared to cash provided by operating activi-
ties in fiscal year 2010 of $112.5 million. This increase of $57.1 million in cash provided by operating activities was primar-
ily driven by our operating results (net income adjusted for depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges) which 
generated $63.0 million of cash inflows, offset by a $5.9 million year-over-year increase in cash used to fund net operating 
asset needs. The increase in cash inflows was primarily due to the operations of WildBlue being included for the entire 
 fiscal year. The increase in net operating assets was predominantly due to additional investment in our inventory of $15.6 
million from April 2, 2010 to support our government satellite communication systems and next generation broadband 
equipment programs, as well as due to a $15.5 million increase in combined billed and unbilled accounts receivables, net, 
from April 2, 2010 attributable to contractual timing of certain milestones in our government systems segment.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2011 was $237.7 million compared to cash used in investing activities in 
 fiscal year 2010 of $519.0 million. The decrease in cash used in investing activities was primarily related to $378.0 million 
of net cash used for the acquisition of WildBlue in fiscal year 2010, compared to approximately $13.5 million of net cash 
used for the acquisition of Stonewood in fiscal year 2011 and a decrease of approximately $13.8 million in capital expendi-
tures for the construction of ViaSat-1. This decrease was offset by an increase of approximately $49.3 million in capital 
expenditures for new CPE units used in our retail consumer broadband service and other general purpose equipment, and 
an additional $38.3 million for the construction of gateway facilities and network operation systems related to ViaSat-1.

Cash provided by financing activities for fiscal year 2011 was $18.6 million compared to $432.1 million for fiscal year 2010. 
This $413.5 million decrease related primarily to $271.6 million in proceeds, net of issue discount, from our borrowing 
under the Notes, $60.0 million in proceeds, net of repayments, from borrowings under our Credit Facility, and $100.5 
 million in net proceeds from a public offering of common stock during fiscal year 2010. These cash inflows in fiscal year 
2010 were offset by the payment of debt issuance costs of $12.8 million and the repurchase of 251,731 shares of ViaSat 
common stock from Intelsat for approximately $8.0 million compared to a $2.8 million payment of debt issuance costs in 
fiscal year 2011. In addition, cash provided by financing activities for both periods included cash received from stock 
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option exercises and employee stock purchase plan purchases, which raised an additional $3.3 million year-over-year, and 
cash used for the repurchase of common stock related to net share settlement of certain employee tax liabilities in connec-
tion with the vesting of restricted stock unit awards.

Satellite-rel ated activitieS
In January 2008, we entered into several agreements with Space Systems/Loral, Inc. (SS/L), Loral Space & 
Communications, Inc. (Loral) and Telesat Canada related to our anticipated high-capacity satellite system. Under the satel-
lite construction contract with SS/L, we purchased ViaSat-1, a new high-capacity Ka-band spot-beam satellite designed by 
us and currently under construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million, subject to purchase price adjustments based 
on satellite performance. The total cost of the satellite is $246.0 million, but, as part of the satellite purchase arrangements, 
Loral executed a separate contract with SS/L whereby Loral is purchasing the Canadian beams on the ViaSat-1 satellite for 
approximately $36.9 million (15% of the total satellite cost). We have entered into a beam sharing agreement with Loral, 
whereby Loral has agreed to reimburse us for 15% of the total costs associated with launch and launch insurance, which is 
estimated to be approximately $22.5 million, and in-orbit insurance and satellite operating costs post launch. On March 1, 
2011, Loral entered into agreements with Telesat Canada pursuant to which Loral assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat 
Canada assumed from Loral all of Loral’s rights and obligations with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1.

In November 2008, we entered into a launch services agreement with Arianespace to procure launch services for 
ViaSat-1 at a cost estimated to be $107.8 million, depending on the mass of the satellite at launch. In March 2009, we 
substituted ILS International Launch Services, Inc. (ILS) for Arianespace as the primary provider of launch services for 
ViaSat-1 and, accordingly, we entered into a contract for launch services with ILS to procure launch services for ViaSat-1 
at an estimated cost of approximately $80.0 million, subject to certain adjustments, resulting in a net savings of 
approximately $20.0 million.

On May 7, 2009, we entered into an Amended and Restated Launch Services Agreement with Arianespace whereby 
Arianespace has agreed to perform certain launch services to maintain the launch capability for ViaSat-1, should the need 
arise, or for launch services of a future ViaSat satellite launch prior to December 2015. This amendment and restatement 
also provides for certain cost adjustments depending on fluctuations in foreign currencies, mass of the satellite launched 
and launch period timing.

The projected total cost of the ViaSat-1 project, including the satellite, launch, insurance and related gateway infrastructure, 
through in-service of the satellite is estimated to be approximately $400.0 million, excluding capitalized interest, and will 
depend on the timing of the gateway infrastructure roll-out, among other things. However, we anticipate capitalizing certain 
amounts of interest expense related to our outstanding borrowings in connection with our capital projects under construc-
tion, such as construction of ViaSat-1 and other assets. We continually evaluate alternative strategies that would limit our 
total required investment. We believe we have adequate sources of funding for the project, which includes our cash on 
hand, the cash we expect to generate from operations, and additional borrowing ability based on our financial position and 
debt leverage ratio. We believe this provides us flexibility to execute this project in an appropriate manner and/or obtain 
 outside equity under terms that we consider reasonable.

Senior noteS due 2016
On October 22, 2009, we issued $275.0 million in principal amount of Notes in a private placement to institutional buyers. 
The Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the SEC. The Notes 
bear interest at the rate of 8.875% per year, payable semi-annually in cash in arrears, which interest payments com-
menced in March 2010. The Notes were issued with an original issue discount of 1.24%, or $3.4 million. The Notes are 
recorded as long-term debt, net of original issue discount, in our consolidated financial statements. The original issue dis-
count and deferred financing cost associated with the issuance of the Notes are amortized to interest expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the Notes.

The Notes are guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by each of our existing and future subsidiaries that guarantees the 
Credit Facility (the Guarantor Subsidiaries). The Notes and the guarantees are our and the Guarantor Subsidiaries’ general 
senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of their existing and future unsecured unsubordi-
nated debt. The Notes and the guarantees are effectively junior in right of payment to their existing and future secured 
debt, including under the Credit Facility (to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt), are structurally subor-
dinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of our subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Notes, 
and are senior in right of payment to all of their existing and future subordinated indebtedness.

The indenture governing the Notes limits, among other things, our and our restricted subsidiaries’ ability to: incur, assume 
or guarantee additional debt; issue redeemable stock and preferred stock; pay dividends, make distributions or redeem or 
repurchase capital stock; prepay, redeem or repurchase subordinated debt; make loans and investments; grant or incur 
liens; restrict dividends, loans or asset transfers from restricted subsidiaries; sell or otherwise dispose of assets; enter into 
transactions with affiliates; reduce our satellite insurance; and consolidate or merge with, or sell substantially all of their 
assets to, another person.

52593_E.indd   53 6/17/11   4:10 PM



| 
  

 2
0

11
 a

n
n

u
a

l
 R

e
p

o
R

t
5

4

MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

Prior to September 15, 2012, we may redeem up to 35% of the Notes at a redemption price of 108.875% of the principal 
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the redemption date, from the net cash proceeds of 
specified equity offerings. We may also redeem the Notes prior to September 15, 2012, in whole or in part, at a redemption 
price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the applicable premium and any accrued and unpaid interest, if 
any, thereon to the redemption date. The applicable premium is calculated as the greater of: (i) 1.0% of the principal 
amount of such Notes and (ii) the excess, if any, of (a) the present value at such date of redemption of (1) the redemption 
price of such Notes on September 15, 2012 plus (2) all required interest payments due on such Notes through September 
15, 2012 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest to the date of redemption), computed using a discount rate equal to the 
treasury rate (as defined under the indenture) plus 50 basis points, over (b) the then-outstanding principal amount of such 
Notes. The Notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time during the twelve months beginning on September 15, 
2012 at a redemption price of 106.656%, during the twelve months beginning on September 15, 2013 at a redemption 
price of 104.438%, during the twelve months beginning on September 15, 2014 at a redemption price of 102.219%, and 
at any time on or after September 12, 2015 at a redemption price of 100%, in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest, 
if any, thereon to the redemption date.

In the event a change of control occurs (as defined under the indenture), each holder will have the right to require us to 
repurchase all or any part (equal to $2,000 or larger integral multiples of $1,000) of such holder’s Notes at a purchase 
price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, 
if any, to the date of purchase (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due 
on the relevant interest payment date).

credit Facilit y
As of April 1, 2011, the Credit Facility provided a revolving line of credit of $325.0 million (including up to $35.0 million of 
letters of credit), with a maturity date of January 25, 2016. On January 25, 2011 we amended the Credit Facility to (1) 
increase our revolving line of credit from $275.0 million to $325.0 million, (2) extend the maturity date of the Credit Facility 
from July 1, 2012 to January 25, 2016, (3) decrease the commitment fee and the applicable margin for Eurodollar and 
base rate loans under the Credit Facility, and (4) amend certain financial and other covenants to provide us with increased 
flexibility. Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at our option, at either (1) the highest of the Federal Funds 
rate plus 0.50%, Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% or the administrative agent’s prime rate as announced from time to time, or 
(2) at the Eurodollar rate plus, in the case of each of (1) and (2), an applicable margin that is based on the ratio of our 
debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). At April 1, 2011, the weighted average 
effective interest rate on our outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility was 3.29%. We have capitalized certain 
amounts of interest expense on our Credit Facility in connection with the construction of ViaSat-1, related gateway and 
networking equipment, and other assets currently under construction. The Credit Facility is guaranteed by certain of our 
domestic subsidiaries and collateralized by substantially all of our respective assets. The Credit Facility contains financial 
covenants regarding a maximum leverage ratio, a maximum senior secured leverage ratio and a minimum interest 
coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit Facility contains covenants that restrict, among other things, our ability to sell assets, 
make investments and acquisitions, make capital expenditures, grant liens, pay dividends and make certain other 
restricted payments. At April 1, 2011, we had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under the Credit 
Facility and $14.3 million outstanding under standby letters of credit, leaving borrowing availability under the Credit Facility 
as of April 1, 2011 of $250.7 million.

contractual obliGationS
The following table sets forth a summary of our obligations at April 1, 2011: 

For the Fiscal Years Ending  
(In thousands) Total 2012 2013-2014 2015-2016 Thereafter

Operating leases and satellite capacity agreements  $ 161,919 $ 35,642  $ 55,402  $ 28,857  $ 42,018 
Capital lease  3,269 1,238  2,031  —  — 
The Notes (1)   408,217  24,406  48,813  48,813  286,185 
Line of credit   60,000  —  —  60,000  — 
Standby letters of credit   14,278  14,278  —  —  — 
Purchase commitments including  

satellite-related agreements

   
502,378

  
194,950

  
136,927

  
97,950

  
72,551

 

Total  $ 1,150,061 $ 270,514 $ 243,173 $ 235,620 $ 400,754 

(1) Includes total interest payments on the Notes of $24.4 million in fiscal year 2012, $48.8 million in fiscal 2013-2014, $48.8 million in fiscal 2015-2016 and 
$11.2 million thereafter.
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We purchase components from a variety of suppliers and use several subcontractors and contract manufacturers to provide 
design and manufacturing services for our products. During the normal course of business, we enter into agreements with 
subcontractors, contract manufacturers and suppliers that either allow them to procure inventory based upon criteria 
defined by us or that establish the parameters defining our requirements. We have also entered into agreements with sup-
pliers for the construction, operation and launch of ViaSat-1. In addition, we have contracted for an additional launch which 
can be used as a back-up launch for ViaSat-1 or for a future satellite. In certain instances, these agreements allow us the 
option to cancel, reschedule and adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to firm orders being placed. 
Consequently, only a portion of our reported purchase commitments arising from these agreements are firm, non-cancel-
able and unconditional commitments. 

Our consolidated balance sheets included $23.8 million and $24.4 million of “other liabilities” as of April 1, 2011 and April 
2, 2010, respectively, which primarily consisted of our long-term warranty obligations, deferred lease credits, long-term 
 portion of deferred revenue and long-term unrecognized tax position liabilities. These remaining liabilities have been 
excluded from the above table as the timing and/or the amount of any cash payment is uncertain. See Note 8 to our 
 consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our income taxes and related tax positions and  
Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our product warranties.

certain rel ationShiPS and rel ated-Part y tranSactionS
For a discussion of “Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions,” see Note 16 to our consolidated financial 
 statements, which we incorporate herein by reference.

oFF-bal ance Sheet arranGementS
We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements at April 1, 2011 as defined in Regulation S-K Item 303(a)(4) other than 
as discussed under Contractual Obligations above or disclosed in the notes to our consolidated financial statements 
included in this Annual Report.

recent authoritative Guidance
In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance for revenue recognition 
with multiple deliverables (Accounting Standards Updates 2009-13 (ASU 2009-13), which updated ASC 605-25). This new 
guidance impacts the determination of when the individual deliverables included in a multiple-element arrangement may be 
treated as separate units of accounting. Additionally, this guidance modifies the manner in which the transaction consider-
ation is allocated across the separately identified deliverables by no longer permitting the residual method of allocating 
arrangement consideration. This guidance will be effective for us beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2012; however, 
early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact that the authoritative guidance may have on our consoli-
dated financial statements and disclosures.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (ASC 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair 
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The new authoritative guidance results in a 
consistent definition of fair value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between 
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. While many of the amendments to U.S. GAAP are not expected 
to have a significant effect on practice, the new guidance changes some fair value measurement principles and disclosure 
requirements. This guidance will be effective for us beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012. Adoption of this 
authoritative guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

quantitative and qualitative diScloSureS about market riSk
intereSt rate riSk
Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, accounts payable, and 
 short-term and long-term obligations, including the Credit Facility and the Notes. We consider investments in highly liquid 
instruments purchased with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. As of 
April 1, 2011, we had $60.0 million and $275.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under our Credit 
Facility and Notes, respectively, and we held no short-term investments. Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest 
rates relates primarily to borrowings under our Credit Facility, cash equivalents, short-term investments and short-term 
 obligations, as our Notes bear interest at a fixed rate.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the income we 
receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk. To minimize this risk, we maintain a significant portion of 
our cash balance in money market funds. In general, money market funds are not subject to interest rate risk because the 
interest paid on such funds fluctuates with the prevailing interest rate. Our cash and cash equivalents earn interest at 
 variable rates. Given recent declines in interest rates, our interest income has been and may continue to be negatively 
impacted. Fixed rate securities may have their fair market value adversely impacted due to a rise in interest rates, while 
floating rate securities may produce less income than expected if interest rates fall. If the underlying weighted average 
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MANAGEMENt’S DISCuSSION AND ANAlySIS OF  
FINANCIAl CONDItION AND RESultS OF OPERAtIONS (CONT.)

interest rate on our cash and cash equivalents, assuming balances remain constant over a year, changed by 50 basis 
points, interest income would have increased or decreased by approximately $0.1 million and $0.3 million for the fiscal 
years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively. Because our investment policy restricts us to invest in conserva-
tive, interest-bearing investments and because our business strategy does not rely on generating material returns from our 
investment portfolio, we do not expect our market risk exposure on our investment portfolio to be material.

As of April 1, 2011, we had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility. Our 
 primary interest rate under the Credit Facility is the Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin that is based on the ratio of 
our debt to EBITDA. As of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, the weighted average effective interest rate on our outstanding 
borrowings under the Credit Facility was 3.29% and 4.75%, respectively. Assuming the outstanding balance remained 
 constant over a year, a 50 basis point increase in the interest rate would increase interest incurred prior to effects of capi-
talized interest and cash flow by approximately $0.3 million for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010.

ForeiGn exchanGe riSk
We generally conduct our business in U.S. dollars. However, as our international business is conducted in a variety of 
 foreign currencies and we pay some of our vendors in Euros, we are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 
rates. Our objective in managing our exposure to foreign currency risk is to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associ-
ated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Accordingly, from time to time, we may enter into foreign currency forward 
contracts to mitigate risks associated with foreign currency denominated assets, liabilities, commitments and anticipated 
foreign currency transactions.

As of April 1, 2011, we had a number of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding which are intended to reduce the 
foreign currency risk for amounts payable to vendors in Euros. The foreign currency forward contracts with a notional 
amount of $4.6 million had a fair value of approximately $0.2 million and were recorded in other current assets as of April 
1, 2011. The fair value of these foreign currency forward contracts as of April 1, 2011 would have changed by approxi-
mately $0.5 million if the foreign currency forward rate for the Euro to the U.S. dollar on these foreign currency forward 
contracts had changed by 10%. As of April 2, 2010, we had no foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding.

Summarized quarterly data (unaudited)
The following financial information reflects all normal recurring adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, 
 necessary for the fair statement of the results for the interim periods. Summarized quarterly data for fiscal years 2011 and 
2010 are as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2011

Total revenues $ 192,004 $ 197,889  $ 195,941  $ 216,372
Income from operations  7,383  13,073  7,012  11,785
Net income  3,400  7,801  12,927  12,296
Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  3,261  7,786  12,924  12,144
Basic net income per share 0.08 0.19 0.31 0.29
Diluted net income per share  0.08 0.18 0.30 0.28

2010

Total revenues $ 158,408 $ 160,666  $ 156,364  $ 212,642
Income from operations  11,271  12,029  1,862  17,848
Net income  8,292  9,092  3,063  10,392
Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  8,269  9,175  3,246  10,446
Basic net income per share 0.27 0.29 0.10 0.29
Diluted net income per share  0.25 0.28 0.09 0.27

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sum 
of quarterly basic and diluted per share information may not equal annual basic and diluted earnings per share.
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evaluation oF diScloSure controlS and ProcedureS
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving the objective that 
information in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods speci-
fied and pursuant to the requirements of the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and commu-
nicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for 
timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, man-
agement recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reason-
able assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating 
the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by SEC Rule 13a-15(b), we carried out an evaluation, with the participation of our management, including our 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of April 
1, 2011, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based upon the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance 
level as of April 1, 2011.

chanGeS in internal control over Financial rePortinG
We regularly review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems 
to improve controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. 
Changes may include such activities as implementing new, more efficient systems, consolidating activities, and migrating 
processes. During the quarter ended April 1, 2011, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

manaGement’S rePort on internal control over Financial rePortinG
The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial report-
ing as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation 
of the company’s management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the company con-
ducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in the 
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, the company’s management concluded that its internal control over 
 financial reporting was effective as of April 1, 2011.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The company’s independent registered public accounting firm has audited the effectiveness of the company’s internal 
 control over financial reporting as of April 1, 2011, as stated in their report which appears on page 58.

52593_E.indd   57 6/17/11   4:10 PM



| 
  

 2
0

11
 a

n
n

u
a

l
 R

e
p

o
R

t
5

8

REPORt OF INDEPENDENt REGIStERED  
PuBlIC ACCOuNtING FIRM

to the board oF directorS and ShareholderS oF viaSat, inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash 
flows, and equity present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ViaSat, Inc. and its subsidiaries at April 1, 
2011 and April 2, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended April 1, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in 
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of April 1, 
2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial state-
ments and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assess-
ment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the 
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement 
and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the 
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an under-
standing of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and eval-
uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces-
sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

San Diego, California

May 26, 2011
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9CONSOlIDAtED BAlANCE SHEEtS

(In thousands, except share data)

As of April 1, 

2011
As of April 2, 

2010

assets     

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,490 $ 89,631
Accounts receivable, net 191,889 176,351
Inventories 98,555 82,962
Deferred income taxes 18,805 17,346
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 21,141 28,857

Total current assets 370,880 395,147

Satellites, net 533,000 495,689
Property and equipment, net 233,139 155,804
Other acquired intangible assets, net 81,889 89,389
Goodwill 83,532 75,024
Other assets 103,308 82,499

Total assets $ 1,405,748 $ 1,293,552

liaBilities and eQuitY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 71,712 $ 78,355
Accrued liabilities 130,583 102,251
Current portion of other long-term debt 1,128 —

Total current liabilities 203,423 180,606

Senior Notes due 2016, net 272,296 271,801
Other long-term debt 61,946 60,000
Other liabilities 23,842 24,395

Total liabilities 561,507 536,802

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 12) 
Equity:
ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Series A, convertible preferred stock, $.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;  
no shares issued and outstanding at April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively

— —

Common stock, $.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 41,664,767 and  
39,792,633 shares outstanding at April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively

4 4

Paid-in capital 601,029 545,962
Retained earnings 254,722 218,607
Common stock held in treasury, at cost, 560,363 and 407,137 shares at April 1, 2011 and 

April 2, 2010, respectively
(17,907) (12,027)

Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,277 459

Total ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity 840,125 753,005

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 4,116 3,745

Total equity 844,241 756,750

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,405,748 $ 1,293,552

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOlIDAtED StAtEMENtS OF OPERAtIONS

Fiscal Years Ended  
(In thousands, except per share data)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

Revenues:     

Product revenues $ 523,938 $ 584,074 $ 595,342
Service revenues 278,268 104,006 32,837

Total revenues 802,206 688,080 628,179

Operating expenses:
Cost of product revenues 389,945 408,526 424,620
Cost of service revenues 160,623 66,830 22,204
Selling, general and administrative 164,265 132,895 98,624
Independent research and development 28,711 27,325 29,622
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 19,409 9,494 8,822

Income from operations 39,253 43,010 44,287

Other income (expense):

Interest income 323 621 1,463
Interest expense (3,154) (7,354) (509)

Income before income taxes 36,422 36,277 45,241

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (2) 5,438 6,794

Net income 36,424 30,839 38,447
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest, net of tax 309 (297) 116

Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc. $ 36,115 $ 31,136 $ 38,331

Net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders:

Basic net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders $ 0.88 $ 0.94 $ 1.25
Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders $ 0.84 $ 0.89 $ 1.20
Shares used in computing basic net income per share 40,858 33,020 30,772
Shares used in computing diluted net income per share 43,059 34,839 31,884

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1CONSOlIDAtED StAtEMENtS OF CASH FlOWS

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, April 3,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Cash flows from operating aCtiVities     
Net income $ 36,424 $ 30,839 $ 38,447

adjustments to reConCile net inCome to net Cash  
proVided BY operating aCtiVities

Depreciation 83,629 37,373 18,658
Amortization of intangible assets 19,424 9,582 9,952
Stock-based compensation expense 17,440 12,212 9,837
Loss on disposition of fixed assets 6,999 594 193
Deferred income taxes (4,098) 4,229 (5,285)
Other non-cash adjustments 503 2,483 211

Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from changes in operating assets and liabilities, 
net of effects of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable (14,138) (1,117) (9,103)
Inventories (14,030) (9,367) (5,338)
Other assets 3,151 1,504 (2,653)
Accounts payable 6,644 2,965 1,740
Accrued liabilities 32,441 20,612 2,654
Other liabilities (4,772) 637 2,629

Net cash provided by operating activities 169,617 112,546 61,942
Cash flows from inVesting aCtiVities

Purchase of property, equipment and satellites, net (208,285) (134,543) (117,194)
Cash paid for patents, licenses and other assets (15,986) (13,796) (8,028)
Payments related to acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (13,456) (377,987) (925)
Change in restricted cash, net — 7,298 —

Net cash used in investing activities (237,727) (519,028) (126,147)
Cash flows from finanCing aCtiVities

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings 40,000 263,000 10,000
Payments on line of credit (40,000) (203,000) (10,000)
Proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes due 2016, net of discount — 271,582 —
Payment of debt issuance costs (2,775) (12,781) —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under equity plans 26,398 23,085 6,742
Proceeds from common stock issued under public offering, net of issuance costs — 100,533 —
Purchase of common stock in treasury (5,880) (10,326) (667)
Incremental tax benefits from stock-based compensation 867 — 346
Payment on secured borrowing — — (4,720)
Proceeds from sale of stock of majority-owned subsidiary — — 1,500

Net cash provided by financing activities 18,610 432,093 3,201
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 359 529 (681)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (49,141) 26,140 (61,685)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 89,631 63,491 125,176

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 40,490 $ 89,631 $ 63,491

supplemental information

Cash paid for interest (net of amounts capitalized) $ 2,797 $ 6,287 $ 413

Cash (received) paid for income taxes, net of refunds $ (6,563) $ 7,784 $ 13,287

non-Cash inVesting and finanCing aCtiVities

Issuance of common stock in connection with acquisitions $ 4,630 $ 131,888 $ —
Fair value of assets acquired in business combinations, excluding cash acquired $ 22,699 $ 536,732 $ —
Liabilities assumed in business combinations $ 4,613 $ 26,857 $ —
Issuance of stock in satisfaction of certain accrued employee compensation 

liabilities
$ 5,096 $ 5,090 $ —

Equipment acquired under capital lease $ 3,074 $ — $ —
Issuance of common stock in connection with license right obtained $ — $ 303 $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOlIDAtED StAtEMENtS OF EQuIty  
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

                              ViaSat, Inc. Stockholders

Common Stock Common Stock in Treasury

(In thousands, except share data) Number of Shares Issued Amount Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings Number of Shares Amount

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 

Income (Loss)
Noncontrolling 

Interest Total
Comprehensive 

Income

Balance at March 28, 2008 30,500,605 $ 3 $ 255,856 $ 149,140 (33,238) $ (1,034) $ 175 $ 2,289 $ 406,429
Exercise of stock options 337,276 — 3,619 — — — — — 3,619
Stock-based compensation expense — — 9,837 — — — — — 9,837
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and release of RSU awards — — 667 — — — — — 667
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 182,024 — 3,123 — — — — — 3,123
RSU awards vesting 94,181 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (33,730) (667) — — (667)
Majority-owned subsidiary stock issuance — — — — — — — 1,500 1,500
Other noncontrolling interest activity — — — — — — — 137 137
Net income — — — 38,331 — — — 116 38,447 $ 38,447
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — (302) — (302) (302)

Comprehensive income $ 38,145

Balance at April 3, 2009 31,114,086 $ 3 $ 273,102 $ 187,471 (66,968) $ (1,701) $ (127) $ 4,042 $ 462,790
Exercise of stock options 1,019,899 — 19,435 — — — — — 19,435
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 168,640 — 3,650 — — — — — 3,650
Stock-based compensation expense — — 12,212 — — — — — 12,212
Shares issued in settlement of certain accrued employee compensation liabilities 192,894 — 5,090 — — — — — 5,090
RSU awards vesting 234,039 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (88,438) (2,326) — — (2,326)
Shares issued in connection with acquisition of business, net of issuance costs 4,286,250 1 131,637 — — — — — 131,638
Shares repurchased from Intelsat — — — — (251,731) (8,000) — — (8,000)
Shares issued in connection with license right obtained 10,000 — 303 — — — — — 303
Common stock issued under public offering, net of issuance costs 3,173,962 — 100,533 — — — — — 100,533
Net income — — — 31,136 — — — (297) 30,839 $ 30,839
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — 586 — 586 586

Comprehensive income $ 31,425

Balance at April 2, 2010 40,199,770 $ 4 $ 545,962 $ 218,607 (407,137) $ (12,027) $ 459 $ 3,745 $ 756,750
Exercise of stock options 1,124,415 — 22,101 — — — — — 22,101
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 159,940 — 4,297 — — — — — 4,297
Stock-based compensation expense — — 17,640 — — — — — 17,640
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and release of RSU awards — — 1,303 — — — — — 1,303
Shares issued in settlement of certain accrued employee compensation liabilities 162,870 — 5,096 — — — — — 5,096
RSU awards vesting 433,173 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (153,226) (5,880) — — (5,880)
Shares issued in connection with acquisition of business, net of issuance costs 144,962 — 4,630 — — — — — 4,630
Other noncontrolling interest activity — — — — — — — 62 62
Net income — — — 36,115 — — — 309 36,424 $ 36,424
Hedging transactions, net of tax — — — — — — 182 — 182 182
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — 1,636 — 1,636 1,636

Comprehensive income $ 38,242

Balance at April 1, 2011 42,225,130 $ 4 $ 601,029 $ 254,722 (560,363) $ (17,907) $ 2,277 $ 4,116 $ 844,241

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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                              ViaSat, Inc. Stockholders

Common Stock Common Stock in Treasury

(In thousands, except share data) Number of Shares Issued Amount Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings Number of Shares Amount

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 

Income (Loss)
Noncontrolling 

Interest Total
Comprehensive 

Income

Balance at March 28, 2008 30,500,605 $ 3 $ 255,856 $ 149,140 (33,238) $ (1,034) $ 175 $ 2,289 $ 406,429
Exercise of stock options 337,276 — 3,619 — — — — — 3,619
Stock-based compensation expense — — 9,837 — — — — — 9,837
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and release of RSU awards — — 667 — — — — — 667
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 182,024 — 3,123 — — — — — 3,123
RSU awards vesting 94,181 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (33,730) (667) — — (667)
Majority-owned subsidiary stock issuance — — — — — — — 1,500 1,500
Other noncontrolling interest activity — — — — — — — 137 137
Net income — — — 38,331 — — — 116 38,447 $ 38,447
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — (302) — (302) (302)

Comprehensive income $ 38,145

Balance at April 3, 2009 31,114,086 $ 3 $ 273,102 $ 187,471 (66,968) $ (1,701) $ (127) $ 4,042 $ 462,790
Exercise of stock options 1,019,899 — 19,435 — — — — — 19,435
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 168,640 — 3,650 — — — — — 3,650
Stock-based compensation expense — — 12,212 — — — — — 12,212
Shares issued in settlement of certain accrued employee compensation liabilities 192,894 — 5,090 — — — — — 5,090
RSU awards vesting 234,039 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (88,438) (2,326) — — (2,326)
Shares issued in connection with acquisition of business, net of issuance costs 4,286,250 1 131,637 — — — — — 131,638
Shares repurchased from Intelsat — — — — (251,731) (8,000) — — (8,000)
Shares issued in connection with license right obtained 10,000 — 303 — — — — — 303
Common stock issued under public offering, net of issuance costs 3,173,962 — 100,533 — — — — — 100,533
Net income — — — 31,136 — — — (297) 30,839 $ 30,839
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — 586 — 586 586

Comprehensive income $ 31,425

Balance at April 2, 2010 40,199,770 $ 4 $ 545,962 $ 218,607 (407,137) $ (12,027) $ 459 $ 3,745 $ 756,750
Exercise of stock options 1,124,415 — 22,101 — — — — — 22,101
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 159,940 — 4,297 — — — — — 4,297
Stock-based compensation expense — — 17,640 — — — — — 17,640
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and release of RSU awards — — 1,303 — — — — — 1,303
Shares issued in settlement of certain accrued employee compensation liabilities 162,870 — 5,096 — — — — — 5,096
RSU awards vesting 433,173 — — — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements — — — — (153,226) (5,880) — — (5,880)
Shares issued in connection with acquisition of business, net of issuance costs 144,962 — 4,630 — — — — — 4,630
Other noncontrolling interest activity — — — — — — — 62 62
Net income — — — 36,115 — — — 309 36,424 $ 36,424
Hedging transactions, net of tax — — — — — — 182 — 182 182
Foreign currency translation, net of tax — — — — — — 1,636 — 1,636 1,636

Comprehensive income $ 38,242

Balance at April 1, 2011 42,225,130 $ 4 $ 601,029 $ 254,722 (560,363) $ (17,907) $ 2,277 $ 4,116 $ 844,241

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS

NOTE 1

the comPany and a Summary oF itS SiGniFicant accountinG PolicieS
the comPany
ViaSat, Inc. (also referred to hereafter as the “Company” or “ViaSat”) designs, produces and markets advanced innovative 
satellite and other wireless communication and secure networking systems, products and services.

PrinciPleS oF conSolidation
The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and results of operations of ViaSat and its 
wholly owned subsidiaries and of TrellisWare Technologies, Inc. (TrellisWare), a majority-owned subsidiary. All significant 
intercompany amounts have been eliminated.

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Friday closest to March 31 of the specified year. For exam-
ple, references to fiscal year 2011 refer to the fiscal year ending on April 1, 2011. The Company’s quarters for fiscal year 
2011 ended on July 2, 2010, October 1, 2010, December 31, 2010 and April 1, 2011. This results in a 53 week fiscal year 
approximately every four to five years. Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are both 52 week years, compared with a 53 week year 
in fiscal year 2009. As a result of the shift in the fiscal calendar, the second quarter of fiscal year 2009 included an addi-
tional week. The Company does not believe that the extra week results in any material impact on its financial results.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of Stonewood Group Limited 
(Stonewood), a privately held company registered in England and Wales. During the third quarter of fiscal year 2010, the 
Company completed the acquisition of WildBlue Holding, Inc. (WildBlue), a privately held Delaware corporation. These 
acquisitions were accounted for as purchases and accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include the operating 
results of Stonewood and WildBlue from the dates of acquisition (see Note 9).

On April 4, 2009, the beginning of the Company’s first quarter of fiscal year 2010, the Company adopted the authoritative 
guidance for noncontrolling interests (Accounting Standards Codification 810-10-65-1 (ASC 810-10-65-1)) on a prospective 
basis, except for the presentation and disclosure requirements which were applied retrospectively for all periods presented. 
As a result, the Company reclassified to noncontrolling interest, a component of equity, what was previously reported as 
minority interest in consolidated subsidiary in the mezzanine section of the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and 
reported as a separate caption within the Company’s consolidated statements of operations, net income, net income attrib-
utable to the noncontrolling interest, and net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc. In addition, the Company utilized net 
income which now includes noncontrolling interest, as the starting point on the Company’s consolidated statements of cash 
flows in order to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities. These reclassifications had no effect on 
previously reported consolidated income from operations, net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc. or net cash provided by 
operating activities. Also, net income per share continues to be based on net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc.

manaGement eStimateS and aSSumPtionS
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the most current and best available 
information and actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates made by management include 
 revenue recognition, stock-based compensation, self-insurance reserves, allowance for doubtful accounts, warranty 
accrual, valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets, patents, orbital slots and orbital licenses, software develop-
ment, property, equipment and satellites, long-lived assets, derivatives, contingencies and income taxes including the 
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets.

caSh equivalentS
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less at the date of purchase.

accountS receivable, unbilled accountS receivable and allowance For doubtFul accountS
The Company records receivables at net realizable value including an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts. The 
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment of the collectability of customer accounts. The 
Company regularly reviews the allowance by considering factors such as historical experience, credit quality, the age of 
accounts receivable balances and current economic conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to pay. Amounts deter-
mined to be uncollectible are charged or written off against the reserve. Historically, the Company’s allowance for doubtful 
accounts has been minimal primarily because a significant portion of its sales has been to the U.S. government or with 
respect to its satellite service commercial business, the Company bills and collects in advance.
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Unbilled receivables consist of costs and fees earned and billable on contract completion or other specified events. 
Unbilled receivables are generally expected to be billed and collected within one year.

concentration oF riSk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of 
cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable which are generally not collateralized. The Company limits its exposure to 
credit loss by placing its cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions and investing in high quality short-
term debt instruments. The Company establishes customer credit policies related to its accounts receivable based on his-
torical collection experiences within the various markets in which the Company operates, historical past due amounts and 
any specific information that the Company becomes aware of such as bankruptcy or liquidity issues of customers.

Revenues from the U.S. government comprised 24.5%, 30.3% and 36.0% of total revenues for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. Billed accounts receivable to the U.S. government as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010 were 35.3% 
and 28.7%, respectively, of total billed receivables. In addition, none of the Company’s commercial customers comprised 
10.0% or more of total revenues for fiscal years 2011 and 2010. In fiscal year 2009 one commercial customer comprised 
10.3% of total revenues and as of April 3, 2009 represented 9.8% of total billed receivables. The Company’s five largest 
contracts generated approximately 21.2%, 25.4% and 34.8% of the Company’s total revenues for the fiscal years ended 
April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, respectively.

The Company relies on a limited number of contract manufacturers to produce its products.

inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the weighted average cost method.

ProPert y, equiPment and SatelliteS
Equipment, computers and software, furniture and fixtures, the Company’s satellite under construction and related gateway 
and networking equipment under construction are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The Company com-
putes depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from two to twenty-
four years. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the 
lease term or the life of the improvement. Additions to property, equipment and satellites, together with major renewals and 
betterments, are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals and betterments are charged to expense. When 
assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from 
the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.

Satellite construction costs, including launch services and insurance, are generally procured under long-term contracts that 
provide for payments over the contract periods and are capitalized as incurred. The Company is also constructing gateway 
facilities and network operations systems to support the satellite under construction and these construction costs are capi-
talized as incurred. Interest expense is capitalized on the carrying value of the satellite, related gateway and networking 
equipment and other assets during the construction period, in accordance with the authoritative guidance for the capitaliza-
tion of interest (ASC 835-20). With respect to ViaSat-1 (the Company’s high-capacity satellite), related gateway and net-
working equipment and other assets currently under construction, the Company capitalized $28.3 million and $8.8 million 
of interest expense during the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively.

As a result of the acquisition of WildBlue on December 15, 2009 (see Note 9), the Company acquired the WildBlue-1 satel-
lite (which was placed into service in March 2007), an exclusive prepaid lifetime capital lease of Ka-band capacity over the 
continental United States on Telesat Canada’s Anik F2 satellite (which was placed into service in April 2005) and related 
gateway and networking equipment on both satellites. The acquired assets also included the indoor and outdoor customer 
premise equipment (CPE) units leased to subscribers under WildBlue’s retail leasing program. The Company depreciates 
the satellites, gateway and networking equipment, CPE units and related installation costs over their estimated useful lives. 
The total cost and accumulated depreciation of CPE units included in property and equipment, net as of April 1, 2011 was 
$61.6 million and $19.2 million, respectively. The total cost and accumulated depreciation of CPE units included in prop-
erty and equipment, net as of April 2, 2010 was $41.5 million and $4.2 million, respectively.

Occasionally, the Company may enter into capital lease arrangements for various machinery, equipment, computer-related 
equipment, software, furniture or fixtures. As of April 1, 2011, assets under capital leases totaled approximately $3.1 million 
and there was an immaterial amount of accumulated amortization. The Company had no material capital lease arrange-
ments as of April 2, 2010. The Company records amortization of assets leased under capital lease arrangements within 
depreciation expense.

Goodwill and intanGible aSSetS
The authoritative guidance for business combinations (ASC 805) requires that all business combinations be accounted for 
using the purchase method. The authoritative guidance for business combinations also specifies criteria for recognizing and 
reporting intangible assets apart from goodwill; however, acquired workforce must be recognized and reported in goodwill. 
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

The authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets (ASC 350) requires that intangible assets with an indefi-
nite life should not be amortized until their life is determined to be finite. All other intangible assets must be amortized over 
their useful life. The authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets prohibits the amortization of goodwill 
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, but instead requires these assets to be tested for impairment at least annually and 
more frequently upon the occurrence of specified events. In addition, all goodwill must be assigned to reporting units for 
purposes of impairment testing.

PatentS, orbital SlotS and other licenSeS
The Company capitalizes the costs of obtaining or acquiring patents, orbital slots and other licenses. Amortization of 
 intangible assets that have finite lives is provided for by the straight-line method over the shorter of the legal or estimated 
economic life. Total capitalized costs of $3.2 million and $3.0 million related to patents were included in other assets as of 
April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively. Accumulated amortization related to these patents was $0.3 million as of 
each of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010. Amortization expense related to these patents was less than $0.1 million for each 
of the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010, and April 3, 2009. As of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, the 
Company had capitalized costs of $5.7 million and $5.2 million related to acquiring and obtaining orbital slots and other 
licenses, included in other assets, that have not yet been placed into service. If a patent, orbital slot or orbital license is 
rejected, abandoned or otherwise invalidated, the unamortized cost is expensed in that period. During fiscal years 2011, 
2010 and 2009, the Company did not write off any material costs due to abandonment or impairment.

debt iSSuance coStS
Debt issuance costs are amortized and recognized as interest expense on a straight-line basis over the expected term of 
the related debt, which is not materially different from an effective interest rate basis. During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, 
the Company paid and capitalized approximately $2.8 million and $12.8 million, respectively, in debt issuance costs related 
to the Company’s revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) and 8.875% Senior Notes due 2016 (the Notes). During fiscal 
year 2009, the Company did not pay or capitalize any material amounts of debt issuance costs related to the Credit Facility. 
Unamortized debt issuance costs are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets and in other long-term assets 
in the consolidated balance sheets, depending on the amounts expected to be amortized to interest expense within the 
next twelve months.

SoFt ware develoPment
Costs of developing software for sale are charged to research and development expense when incurred, until technological 
feasibility has been established. Software development costs incurred from the time technological feasibility is reached until 
the product is available for general release to customers are capitalized and reported at the lower of unamortized cost or 
net realizable value. Once the product is available for general release, the software development costs are amortized based 
on the ratio of current to future revenue for each product with an annual minimum equal to straight-line amortization over 
the remaining estimated economic life of the product, generally within five years. The Company capitalized $15.8 million 
and $8.0 million of costs related to software developed for resale for fiscal years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, 
respectively. There was no amortization expense of software development costs during fiscal years 2011 and 2010. 
Amortization expense of software development costs was $1.1 million for fiscal year 2009.

imPairment oF lonG-lived aSSetS (ProPert y, equiPment and SatelliteS, and other aSSetS)
In accordance with the authoritative guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets (ASC 360), the Company 
assesses potential impairments to long-lived assets, including property, equipment and satellites, and other assets, when 
there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognized when the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset (or group of assets) 
is less than its carrying value. Any required impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the asset’s carry-
ing value exceeds its fair value, and would be recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and charged 
to results of operations. No material impairments were recorded by the Company for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

imPairment oF Goodwill
The Company accounts for its goodwill under the authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets  
(ASC 350). The guidance for the goodwill impairment model is a two-step process. First, it requires a comparison of the 
book value of net assets to the fair value of the reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them. Reporting units within 
the Company’s government systems, commercial networks and satellite services segments have goodwill assigned to them. 
The Company estimates the fair values of the reporting units using discounted cash flows and other indicators of fair value. 
The cash flow forecasts are adjusted by an appropriate discount rate in order to determine the present value of the cash 
flows. If the fair value is determined to be less than book value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the 
impairment. In this process, a fair value for goodwill is estimated, based in part on the fair value of the reporting unit used 
in the first step, and is compared to its carrying value. The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value, if any, represents 
the amount of goodwill impairment.
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The forecast of future cash flows is based on the Company’s best estimate of the future revenues and operating costs, 
based primarily on existing firm orders, expected future orders, contracts with suppliers, labor agreements and general mar-
ket conditions. Changes in these forecasts could cause a particular reporting unit to either pass or fail the first step in the 
goodwill impairment model, which could significantly influence whether goodwill impairment charge needs to be recorded.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets, Company tests goodwill for impair-
ment during the fourth quarter every fiscal year, and when an event occurs or circumstances change such that it is reason-
ably possible that an impairment may exist. No impairments were recorded by the Company related to goodwill and other 
intangible assets for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

warrant y reServeS
The Company provides limited warranties on its products for periods of up to five years. The Company records a liability for its 
warranty obligations when products are shipped or they are included in long-term construction contracts based upon an esti-
mate of expected warranty costs. Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as a current liability.

Fair value oF Financial inStrumentS
The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade 
receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities. The 
estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term borrowings is determined by using available market information for those 
securities or similar financial instruments (see Note 3).

SelF-inSurance liabilitieS
The Company has self-insurance plans to retain a portion of the exposure for losses related to employee medical benefits 
and workers’ compensation. The self-insurance policies provide for both specific and aggregate stop-loss limits. The 
Company utilizes internal actuarial methods as well as other historical information for the purpose of estimating ultimate 
costs for a particular policy year. Based on these actuarial methods, along with currently available information and insur-
ance industry statistics, the Company’s self-insurance liability for the plans was $1.5 million as of April 1, 2011 and $1.4 
million as of April 2, 2010. The Company’s estimate, which is subject to inherent variability, is based on average claims 
experience in the Company’s industry and its own experience in terms of frequency and severity of claims, including 
asserted and unasserted claims incurred but not reported, with no explicit provision for adverse fluctuation from year to 
year. This variability may lead to ultimate payments being either greater or less than the amounts presented above. Self-
insurance liabilities have been classified as current in accordance with the estimated timing of the projected payments.

Secured borrowinG cuStomer arranGementS
Occasionally, the Company enters into secured borrowing arrangements in connection with customer financing in order to 
provide additional sources of funding. As of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, the Company had no secured borrowing 
arrangements with customers. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, the Company paid all obligations related to its 
secured borrowing, under which the Company pledged a note receivable from a customer to serve as collateral for the 
 obligation under the borrowing arrangement, totaling $4.7 million plus accrued interest.

During fiscal year 2008, due to the customer’s payment default under the note receivable, the Company wrote down the note 
receivable by approximately $5.3 million related to the principal and interest accrued to date. During the fourth quarter of 
 fiscal year 2009, the Company entered into certain agreements with the note receivable insurance carrier providing the 
Company approximately $1.7 million in cash payments. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company received cash payments 
totaling $2.0 million during fiscal year 2010 and as of April 2, 2010 recorded a current asset of approximately $1.0 million and 
a long-term asset of approximately $0.5 million. During fiscal year 2011, pursuant to these agreements, the Company received 
additional cash payments totaling $1.2 million and as of April 1, 2011 recorded a current asset of approximately $0.5 million.

indemniFication ProviSionS
In the ordinary course of business, the Company includes indemnification provisions in certain of its contracts, generally 
relating to parties with which the Company has commercial relations. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company will 
indemnify, hold harmless and agree to reimburse the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified 
party, including but not limited to losses relating to third-party intellectual property claims. To date, there have not been any 
costs incurred in connection with such indemnification clauses. The Company’s insurance policies do not necessarily cover 
the cost of defending indemnification claims or providing indemnification, so if a claim was filed against the Company by 
any party that the Company has agreed to indemnify, the Company could incur substantial legal costs and damages. A 
claim would be accrued when a loss is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. At April 1, 2011 
and April 2, 2010, no such amounts were accrued.

Simultaneously with the execution of the merger agreement relating to the acquisition of WildBlue, the Company entered 
into an indemnification agreement dated September 30, 2009 with several of the former stockholders of WildBlue pursuant 
to which such former stockholders agreed to indemnify the Company for costs which result from, relate to or arise out of 
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

potential claims and liabilities under various WildBlue contracts, an existing appraisal action regarding WildBlue’s 2008 
recapitalization, certain rights to acquire securities of WildBlue and a severance agreement. Under the indemnification 
agreement, the Company is required to pay up to $0.5 million and has recorded a liability of $0.5 million in the consoli-
dated balance sheets as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010 as an element of accrued liabilities.

noncontrollinG intereSt
A noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest in a subsidiary that is not attributable, either directly or indirectly, to the 
Company and is reported as equity of the Company, separately from the Company’s controlling interest. Revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses, net income or loss and other comprehensive income are reported in the consolidated financial statements at 
the consolidated amounts, which include the amounts attributable to both the controlling and noncontrolling interest.

In April 2008, the Company’s majority-owned subsidiary, TrellisWare, issued additional shares of preferred stock in which 
the Company invested $1.8 million in order to retain a constant ownership interest. As a result of the transaction, TrellisWare 
also received $1.5 million in cash proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock to its other principal stockholders.

common Stock held in treaSury
During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, the Company issued 433,173 and 234,039 shares of common stock, respectively, 
based on the vesting terms of certain restricted stock unit agreements. In order for employees to satisfy minimum statutory 
employee tax withholding requirements related to the issuance of common stock underlying these restricted stock unit 
agreements, the Company repurchased 153,226 and 88,438 shares of common stock with a total value of $5.9 million and 
$2.3 million during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010, respectively.

On January 4, 2010, the Company repurchased 251,731 shares of the Company’s common stock from Intelsat USA Sales 
Corp for $8.0 million in cash. Repurchased shares of common stock of 560,363 and 407,137 were held in treasury as of 
April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively.

derivativeS
The Company enters into foreign currency forward and option contracts from time to time to hedge certain forecasted for-
eign currency transactions. Gains and losses arising from foreign currency forward and option contracts not designated as 
hedging instruments are recorded in other income (expense) as gains (losses) on derivative instruments. Gains and losses 
arising from the effective portion of foreign currency forward and option contracts which are designated as cash-flow hedg-
ing instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as unrealized gains (losses) on derivative 
instruments until the underlying transaction affects the Company’s earnings, at which time they are then recorded in the 
same income statement line as the underlying transaction.

The fair values of the Company’s outstanding foreign currency forward contracts as of April 1, 2011 were as follows:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

(In thousands) Balance Sheet Classification Fair Value Balance Sheet Classification Fair Value

deriVatiVes designated as hedging instruments

Foreign currency forward contracts  
Other current assets

$ 182
Not applicable

$ —

Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ 182 $ —

The Company had no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as of April 2, 2010. The notional value of foreign cur-
rency forward contracts outstanding as of April 1, 2011 was $4.6 million.

The effects of foreign currency forward contracts in cash flow hedging relationships during fiscal year 2011 were as follows:

(In thousands)

Amount of Gain or 
(Loss) Recognized 

in Accumulated 
OCI on Derivatives 
(Effective Portion) 

Location of Gain or 
(Loss) Reclassified 
from Accumulated 

OCI into Income 
(Effective Portion)

Amount of Gain or 
(Loss) Reclassified 
from Accumulated 

OCI into Income 
(Effective Portion)

Location of Gain or 
(Loss) Recognized in 
Income on Derivative 

(Ineffective Portion and 
Amount Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing)

Amount of Gain or (Loss) 
Recognized in Income on 

Derivative (Ineffective 
Portion and Amount 

Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing)

deriVatiVes in Cash flow 
hedging relationships

Foreign currency forward contracts $ 182 Cost of product 
revenues

$ 857
Not applicable

$ —

Total $ 182 $ 857 $ —

During fiscal year 2010, the Company did not settle any foreign currency forward contracts.
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The effects of foreign currency forward contracts in cash flow hedging relationships during fiscal year 2009 were as follows: 

 

(In thousands)

Amount of Gain or 
(Loss) Recognized 

in Accumulated 
OCI on Derivatives 
(Effective Portion)

Location of Gain or 
(Loss) Reclassified 
from Accumulated 

OCI into Income 
(Effective Portion)

Amount of Gain or 
(Loss) Reclassified 
from Accumulated 

OCI into Income 
(Effective Portion)

Location of Gain or 
(Loss) Recognized in 
Income on Derivative 

(Ineffective Portion and 
Amount Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing)

Amount of Gain or (Loss) 
Recognized in Income 

on Derivative (Ineffective 
Portion and Amount 

Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing)

deriVatiVes in Cash flow 
hedging relationships

Foreign currency forward contracts $ — Cost of product 
revenues

$ (268)
Not applicable

$ —

Total $ — $ (268) $ —

At April 1, 2011, the estimated net existing income that is expected to be reclassified into income within the next twelve 
months is approximately $0.2 million. Foreign currency forward contracts usually mature within approximately twelve 
months from their inception. There were no gains or losses from ineffectiveness of these derivative instruments recorded 
for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

ForeiGn currency
In general, the functional currency of a foreign operation is deemed to be the local country’s currency. Consequently, assets 
and liabilities of operations outside the United States are generally translated into U.S. dollars, and the effects of foreign 
currency translation adjustments are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within 
ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity.

revenue recoGnition
A substantial portion of the Company’s revenues are derived from long-term contracts requiring development and delivery 
of complex equipment built to customer specifications. Sales related to long-term contracts are accounted for under the 
authoritative guidance for the percentage-of-completion method of accounting (ASC 605-35). Sales and earnings under 
these contracts are recorded either based on the ratio of actual costs incurred to date to total estimated costs expected to 
be incurred related to the contract or as products are shipped under the units-of-delivery method. Anticipated losses on 
contracts are recognized in full in the period in which losses become probable and estimable. Changes in estimates of 
profit or loss on contracts are included in earnings on a cumulative basis in the period the estimate is changed.

In June 2010, the Company performed extensive integration testing of numerous system components that had been sepa-
rately developed as part of a government satellite communication program. As a result of this testing and subsequent inter-
nal reviews and analyses, the Company determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the 
program requirements and specifications and to prepare for a scheduled customer test in the Company’s fiscal second 
quarter. This additional rework and engineering effort resulted in a substantial increase in estimated labor and material 
costs to complete the program. Accordingly, the Company recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million in the three 
months ended July 2, 2010 related to this estimate of program costs. While the Company believes the additional forward 
loss is adequate to cover known risks to date and that steps taken to improve the program performance will be effective, 
the program is ongoing and the Company’s efforts and the end results must be satisfactory to the customer. The Company 
believes that its estimate of costs to complete the program is appropriate based on known information, however, additional 
future losses could be required. Including this program, in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded losses 
of approximately $12.1 million, $9.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, related to loss contracts.

The Company also derives a substantial portion of its revenues from contracts and purchase orders where revenue is 
recorded on delivery of products or performance of services in accordance with authoritative guidance for revenue recogni-
tion (ASC 605). Under this standard, the Company recognizes revenue when an arrangement exists, prices are determin-
able, collectability is reasonably assured and the goods or services have been delivered.

The Company also enters into certain leasing arrangements with customers and evaluates the contracts in accordance with 
the authoritative guidance for leases (ASC 840). The Company’s accounting for equipment leases involves specific determi-
nations under the authoritative guidance for leases, which often involve complex provisions and significant judgments. In 
accordance with the authoritative guidance for leases, the Company classifies the transactions as sales type or operating 
leases based on (1) review for transfers of ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease term, (2) review 
of the lease terms to determine if it contains an option to purchase the leased property for a price which is sufficiently 
lower than the expected fair value of the property at the date of the option, (3) review of the lease term to determine if it is 
equal to or greater than 75% of the economic life of the equipment and (4) review of the present value of the minimum 
lease payments to determine if they are equal to or greater than 90% of the fair market value of the equipment at the 
inception of the lease. Additionally, the Company considers the cancelability of the contract and any related uncertainty of 
collections or risk in recoverability of the lease investment at lease inception. Revenue from sales type leases is recognized 
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at the inception of the lease or when the equipment has been delivered and installed at the customer site, if installation is 
required. Revenues from equipment rentals under operating leases are recognized as earned over the lease term, which is 
generally on a straight-line basis.

When a sale involves multiple elements, such as sales of products that include services, the entire fee from the arrange-
ment is allocated to each respective element based on its relative fair value in accordance with authoritative guidance for 
accounting for multiple element revenue arrangements, (ASC 605-25), and recognized when the applicable revenue recog-
nition criteria for each element have been met. The amount of product and service revenue recognized is impacted by the 
Company’s judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and, if so, whether sufficient objective and 
reliable evidence of fair value exists for those elements. Changes to the elements in an arrangement and the Company’s 
ability to establish evidence of fair value for those elements could affect the timing of the revenue recognition.

In accordance with authoritative guidance for shipping and handling fees and costs (ASC 605-45), the Company records 
shipping and handling costs billed to customers as a component of revenues, and shipping and handling costs incurred by 
the Company for inbound and outbound freight are recorded as a component of cost of revenues.

Collections in excess of revenues and deferred revenues represent cash collected from customers in advance of revenue 
recognition and are recorded in accrued liabilities for obligations within the next twelve months. Amounts for obligations 
extending beyond the twelve months are recorded within other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

Contract costs on U.S. government contracts are subject to audit and negotiations with U.S. government representatives. 
The Company’s incurred cost audits by the DCAA have not been completed for fiscal year 2003 and subsequent fiscal 
years. Although the Company has recorded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal year 2002 based upon an estimate of 
costs that the Company believes will be approved upon final audit or review, the Company does not know the outcome of 
any ongoing or future audits or reviews and adjustments, and if future adjustments exceed the Company’s estimates, its 
profitability would be adversely affected. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, based on recent events, including com-
munications with the DCMA, changes in the regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of 
current government audits, the Company recorded an additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for its estimate of 
potential refunds to customers for potential cost adjustments on several multi-year U.S. government cost reimbursable con-
tracts, bringing the Company’s total reserve to $6.7 million as of April 1, 2011. This reserve is classified as either an ele-
ment of accrued liabilities or as a reduction of unbilled accounts receivable based on status of related contracts.

commiSSionS
We compensate third parties based on specific commission programs directly related to certain product and service sales. 
These commission costs are recorded as an element of selling, general and administrative expense as incurred.

Stock-baSed comPenSation
In accordance with the authoritative guidance for share-based payments (ASC 718), the Company measures stock-based 
compensation cost at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and recognizes expense over the 
employee’s requisite service period. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
operations for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 only for those awards ultimately expected to vest, with forfeitures esti-
mated at the date of grant. The authoritative guidance for share-based payments requires forfeitures to be estimated at the 
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized in accordance with the authoritative guidance for share-based 
 payments was as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended April 1, April 2, April 3,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Stock-based compensation expense before taxes $ 17,440 $ 12,212 $ 9,837
Related income tax benefits  (6,511)  (4,429) (3,518)

Stock-based compensation expense, net of taxes $ 10,929 $ 7,783 $ 6,319

For fiscal year 2011 the Company recorded an incremental tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock 
unit awards vesting of $0.9 million which was classified as part of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated 
statements of cash flows. For fiscal year 2010 the Company recorded no incremental tax benefits from stock options exer-
cised and restricted stock unit award vesting as the excess tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock 
unit award vesting increased the Company’s net operating loss carryforward. For fiscal year 2009 the Company recorded 
an incremental tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock unit awards vesting of $0.3 million which was 
classified as part of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.
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The Company has no awards with market or performance conditions. On April 1, 2011, the Company had one principal 
equity compensation plan and employee stock purchase plan described below. The compensation cost that has been 
charged against income for the equity plan under the authoritative guidance for share-based payments was $16.2 million, 
$10.9 million and $8.7 million, and for the stock purchase plan was $1.2 million, $1.3 million and $1.1 million, for the fiscal 
years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, respectively. There was no material compensation cost capital-
ized as part of the cost of an asset for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

As of April 1, 2011, there was total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock-based compensation 
arrangements granted under the Equity Participation Plan (including stock options and restricted stock units) and the 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan of $47.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively. These costs are expected to be recognized 
over a weighted average period of 2.5 years, 2.7 years and less than six months for stock options, restricted stock units and 
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, respectively. The total fair value of shares vested during the fiscal years ended April 1, 
2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, including stock options and restricted stock units, was $15.3 million, $9.3 million 
and $6.3 million, respectively.

Stock Options And Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company’s employee stock options typically have a simple four-
year vesting schedule and a six to ten year contractual term. The weighted average estimated fair value of employee 
stock options granted and employee stock purchase plan shares issued during fiscal year 2011 was $14.24 and $8.55 
per share, respectively, during fiscal year 2010 was $10.55 and $7.84 per share, respectively, and during fiscal year 
2009 was $7.24 and $6.70 per share, respectively, using the Black-Scholes model with the following weighted average 
assumptions (annualized percentages):

Employee Stock Options Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Fiscal Year 

2011
Fiscal Year 

2010
Fiscal Year 

2009
Fiscal Year 

2011
Fiscal Year 

2010
Fiscal Year 

2009

Volatility $ 42.2% 43.0% 38.9% 28.3% 43.7% 54.6%
Risk-free interest rate  0.9% 1.6% 2.7% 0.2% 0.3% 1.2%
Dividend yield $ 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average expected life 4.2 years 4.2 years 4.1 years 0.5 years 0.5 years 0.5 years

The Company’s expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which its stock price is expected to fluctuate over the 
expected term of the stock-based award. The estimated volatilities for stock options are based on the historical volatility cal-
culated using the daily stock price of the Company’s stock over a recent historical period equal to the expected term. The 
risk-free interest rate that the Company uses in determining the fair value of its stock-based awards is based on the implied 
yield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining terms equivalent to the expected term of its stock-based awards.

The expected life of employee stock options represents the calculation using the simplified method consistent with the 
authoritative guidance for share-based payments. Due to significant changes in the Company’s option terms in October of 
2006, the Company will continue to use the simplified method until it has the historical data necessary to provide a reason-
able estimate of expected life. For the expected option life, the Company has “plain-vanilla” stock options, and therefore 
used a simple average of the vesting period and the contractual term for options as permitted by the authoritative guidance 
for share-based payments. The expected term or life of employee stock purchase rights issued represents the expected 
period of time from the date of grant to the estimated date that the stock purchase right under the Company’s Employee 
Stock Purchase Plan would be fully exercised.

A summary of employee stock option activity for fiscal year 2011 is presented below:

Number of Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price  

per Share

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Term

Aggregate  
Intrinsic Value
(In thousands)

Outstanding at April 2, 2010 4,718,176 $ 20.90 28.3
Options granted 266,250 41.26 0.2
Options canceled (20,543) 27.40 0.0
Options exercised (1,124,415) 19.60

Outstanding at April 1, 2011 3,839,468 $ 22.66 2.91 $ 63,894

Vested and exercisable at April 1, 2011 3,131,456 $ 20.50 2.54 $ 58,408

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $21.3 million, $11.3 million 
and $3.9 million, respectively.
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Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units represent a right to receive shares of common stock at a future date deter-
mined in accordance with the participant’s award agreement. There is no exercise price and no monetary payment 
required for receipt of restricted stock units or the shares issued in settlement of the award. Instead, consideration is fur-
nished in the form of the participant’s services to the Company. Restricted stock units generally vest over four years and 
have a six-year contractual term. Compensation cost for these awards is based on the fair value on the date of grant and 
recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. For fiscal years 2011, 2010 
and 2009, the Company recognized $12.6 million, $7.4 million and $4.8 million, respectively, in stock-based compensation 
expense related to these restricted stock unit awards.

The per unit weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock units granted during fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 
2009 was $41.48, $29.19 and $20.41, respectively. A summary of restricted stock unit activity for fiscal year 2011 is 
 presented below:

 

Restricted Stock Units
Weighted Average Remaining 

Contractual Term in Years
Aggregate Intrinsic Value 

(In thousands) 

Outstanding at April 2, 2010 1,389,615
Awarded 630,056
Forfeited (37,035)
Released (433,173)

Outstanding at April 1, 2011 1,549,463 1.64 $ 60,661

Vested and deferred at April 1, 2011 41,467 — $ 1,623

During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, 433,173 restricted stock units vested with a total intrinsic value of $16.7 million; 
234,039 restricted stock units vested with a total intrinsic value of $6.2 million; and 94,181 restricted stock units vested 
with a total intrinsic value of $1.9 million, respectively.

indePendent reSearch and develoPment
Independent research and development (IR&D), which is not directly funded by a third party, is expensed as incurred. 
IR&D expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses, supplies, prototype materials and other 
expenses related to research and development programs.

rent exPenSe, deFerred rent obliGationS and deFerred leaSe incentiveS
The Company leases all of its facilities under operating leases. Some of these lease agreements contain tenant improve-
ment allowances funded by landlord incentives, rent holidays and rent escalation clauses. GAAP requires rent expense to 
be recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the rent due under the stated periods of 
the lease compared to that of the straight-line basis is recorded as deferred rent within accrued and other long-term liabili-
ties in the consolidated balance sheet.

For purposes of recognizing landlord incentives and minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the 
leases, the Company uses the date that it obtains the legal right to use and control the leased space to begin amortization, 
which is generally when the Company enters the space and begins to make improvements in preparation of occupying new 
space. For tenant improvement allowances funded by landlord incentives and rent holidays, the Company records a 
deferred lease incentive liability in accrued and other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and amortizes 
the deferred liability as a reduction to rent expense on the consolidated statement of operations over the term of the lease.

Certain lease agreements contain rent escalation clauses which provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term 
or for rental payments commencing at a date other than the date of initial occupancy. Such increasing rent expense is 
recorded in the consolidated statement of operations on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

At April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, deferred rent included in accrued liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheets was $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively, and deferred rent included in other long-term liabilities in the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheets was $6.3 million and $6.1 million, respectively.

income ta xeS
Accruals for uncertain tax positions are provided for in accordance with the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncer-
tainty in income taxes (ASC 740). The Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is 
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical 
merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured 
based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The authori-
tative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax 
assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and 
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penalties associated with tax positions, and income tax disclosures. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest expense 
and penalties related to income tax matters as a component of income tax expense.

Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected to be payable for the current year. A deferred income 
tax asset or liability is established for the expected future tax consequences resulting from differences in the financial 
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax credit and 
loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is 
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred income tax expense 
(benefit) is the net change during the year in the deferred income tax asset or liability.

earninGS Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and poten-
tial common stock, if dilutive during the period. Potential common stock includes options granted and restricted stock units 
awarded under the Company’s equity compensation plan which are included in the earnings per share calculations using 
the treasury stock method, common shares expected to be issued under the Company’s employee stock purchase plan, 
other conditions denoted in the Company’s agreements with the predecessor stockholders of certain acquired companies 
at April 3, 2009, and shares potentially issuable under the amended ViaSat 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in connection with 
the Company’s decision to pay a discretionary match in common stock or cash.

SeGment rePortinG
The Company’s government systems, commercial networks and satellite services segments are primarily distinguished by 
the type of customer and the related contractual requirements. The Company’s government systems segment develops and 
produces network-centric, IP-based secure government communications systems, products and solutions. The more regu-
lated government environment is subject to unique contractual requirements and possesses economic characteristics 
which differ from the commercial networks and satellite services segments. The Company’s commercial networks segment 
develops and produces a variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communication systems and ground networking equip-
ment and products. The Company’s satellite services segment complements both the government systems and commercial 
networks segments by providing wholesale and retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States via 
the Company’s satellite and capacity agreements, as well as managed network services for the satellite communication sys-
tems of the Company’s consumer, enterprise and mobile broadband customers. The Company’s satellite services segment 
includes the Company’s WildBlue business (which it acquired in December 2009) and the Company’s ViaSat-1 satellite-
related activities. The Company’s segments are determined consistent with the way management currently organizes and 
evaluates financial information internally for making operating decisions and assessing performance.

recent authoritative Guidance
In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance for revenue recognition 
with multiple deliverables (Accounting Standards Updates 209-13 (ASU 2009-13), which updated ASC 605-25). This new 
guidance impacts the determination of when the individual deliverables included in a multiple-element arrangement may be 
treated as separate units of accounting. Additionally, this guidance modifies the manner in which the transaction consider-
ation is allocated across the separately identified deliverables by no longer permitting the residual method of allocating 
arrangement consideration. This guidance will be effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 
2012; however, early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the authoritative guidance 
may have on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (ASC 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair 
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The new authoritative guidance results in a 
consistent definition of fair value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between 
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. While many of the amendments to U.S. GAAP are not 
expected to have a significant effect on practice, the new guidance changes some fair value measurement principles and 
disclosure requirements. This guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012. 
Adoption of this authoritative guidance is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements and disclosures.
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NOTE 2

comPoSition oF certain balance Sheet caPtionS
 (In thousands) April 1, 2011 April 2, 2010

Accounts receivable, net:
Billed $ 100,863 $ 93,737
Unbilled 91,519 83,153
Allowance for doubtful accounts (493) (539)

$ 191,889 $ 176,351

Inventories:
Raw materials $ 46,651 $ 36,255
Work in process 18,713 21,345
Finished goods 33,191 25,362

$ 98,555 $ 82,962

Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Prepaid expenses $ 18,235 $ 13,239
Income tax receivable 26 9,022
Other 2,880 6,596

$ 21,141 $ 28,857

Satellites, net:
Satellite — WildBlue-1 (estimated useful life of 10 years) $ 195,890 $ 195,890
Capital lease of satellite capacity — Anik F2 (estimated useful life of 10 years) 99,090 99,090
Satellite under construction 276,418 209,432

571,398 504,412

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (38,398) (8,723)

$ 533,000 $ 495,689

Property and equipment, net:
Machinery and equipment (estimated useful life of 2-5 years) $ 122,113 $ 96,484
Computer equipment and software (estimated useful life of 2-7 years) 66,768 55,384
CPE leased equipment (estimated useful life of 3-5 years) 61,610 41,469
Furniture and fixtures (estimated useful life of 7 years) 13,053 10,760
Leasehold improvements (estimated useful life of 2-11 years) 24,550 20,119
Building (estimated useful life of 24 years) 8,923 8,923
Land 4,384 4,384
Construction in progress 80,976 18,578

382,377 256,101
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (149,238) (100,297)

$ 233,139 $ 155,804

Other assets:
Capitalized software costs, net $ 24,472 $ 8,683
Patents, orbital slots and other licenses, net 8,639 7,954
Deferred income taxes 47,017 44,910
Other 23,180 20,952

$ 103,308 $ 82,499

Accrued liabilities:
Warranty reserve, current portion $ 8,014 $ 6,410
Accrued vacation 15,600 13,437
Accrued employee compensation 18,804 17,268
Collections in excess of revenues and deferred revenues 61,916 46,180
Other 26,249 18,956

$ 130,583 $ 102,251

Other liabilities:
Warranty reserve, long-term portion $ 4,928 $ 4,798
Deferred rent, long-term portion 6,267 6,127
Deferred revenue, long-term portion 6,960 4,584
Deferred income taxes, long-term portion 3,374 —
Unrecognized tax position liabilities 2,217 2,644
Other 96 6,242

$ 23,842 $ 24,395
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NOTE 3

Fair value meaSurementS
In accordance with the authoritative guidance for financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis (ASC 820), the Company prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value from market-based assumptions to 
entity specific assumptions:

 » Level 1 — Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets at the  
measurement date.

 » Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or 
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

 » Level 3 — Inputs which reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or 
liability at the measurement date. The inputs are unobservable in the market and significant to the instruments valuation.

Effective April 4, 2009, the Company adopted the authoritative guidance for non-financial assets and liabilities that are remea-
sured at fair value on a non-recurring basis without material impact on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

The following tables present the Company’s hierarchy for its assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010:

(In thousands)

Fair Value 
at April 1, 

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets
Cash equivalents $ 4,488 $ 4,488 $ — $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts 182 — 182 —

Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 4,670 $ 4,488 $ 182 $ —

 (In thousands)

Fair Value 
at April 2, 

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets
Cash equivalents $ 14,810 $ 14,810 $ — $ —

Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 14,810 $ 14,810 $ — $ —

The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure financial instruments at fair value:

Cash equivalents — The Company’s cash equivalents consist of money market funds. Money market funds are valued using 
quoted prices for identical assets in an active market with sufficient volume and frequency of transactions (Level 1).

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts — The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage foreign 
currency risk relating to foreign exchange rates. The Company does not use these instruments for speculative or trading 
purposes. The Company’s objective is to reduce the risk to earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates. Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements and are measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair values 
of those derivative instruments are recorded to earnings or other comprehensive income (loss) depending on the use of the 
derivative instrument and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. The Company’s foreign currency forward contracts are 
valued using quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data.

Long-term debt — The Company’s long-term debt consists of borrowings under the Credit Facility, reported at the borrowed 
outstanding amount, capital lease obligations reported at the present value of future minimum lease payments with current 
accrued interest, and the Notes reported at amortized cost. However, for disclosure purposes, the Company is required to 
measure the fair value of outstanding debt on a recurring basis. The fair value of the Company’s outstanding long-term debt 
related to the Notes is determined using quoted prices in active markets and was approximately $293.6 million and $281.2 
million as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt related to the 
Credit Facility approximates its carrying amount due to its variable interest rate on the revolving line of credit, which approxi-
mates a market interest rate. The fair value of the Company’s capital lease obligations is estimated at their carrying value 
based on current rates.
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NOTE 4

Goodwill and acquired intanGible aSSetS
During fiscal year 2011, the Company’s goodwill increased by approximately $8.5 million, net, of which $7.4 million was 
related to the acquisition of Stonewood recorded within the Company’s government systems segment. In addition, the 
Company recorded a $0.4 million increase to goodwill primarily for the tax effect of certain pre-acquisition net operating 
loss carryovers with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets within the Company’s satellite services segment. 
The Company also recorded a $0.5 million decrease to goodwill for the tax effect of certain pre-acquisition net operating 
loss carryovers with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax liabilities within the Company’s government systems seg-
ment. The remaining change relates to the effect of foreign currency translation recorded within the Company’s government 
systems and commercial networks segments.

The other acquired intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of eight 
months to ten years. Amortization expense related to other acquired intangible assets was $19.4 million, $9.5 million and 
$8.8 million for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, respectively.

The expected amortization expense of amortizable acquired intangible assets may change due to the effects of foreign 
 currency fluctuations as a result of the international businesses acquired. Expected amortization expense for acquired 
intangible assets for each of the following periods is as follows:

 (In thousands) Amortization

Expected for fiscal year 2012 $ 18,735
Expected for fiscal year 2013 15,623
Expected for fiscal year 2014 13,879
Expected for fiscal year 2015 13,803
Expected for fiscal year 2016 10,203
Thereafter 9,646

$ 81,889

The allocation of the other acquired intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization as of April 1, 2011 and 
April 2, 2010 is as follows:

Weighted 
Average 

Useful Life

As of April 1, 2011
(In thousands)

As of April 2, 2010
(In thousands)

Total
Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Book 
Value Total

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Book 
Value

Technology 6 $ 54,344 $ (43,930) $ 10,414 $ 44,552 $ (39,147) $ 5,405
Contracts and customer relationships 7 88,834 (28,597) 60,237 86,707 (17,184) 69,523
Non-compete agreements 4 9,332 (9,101) 231 9,098 (8,870) 228
Satellite co-location rights 9 8,600 (1,194) 7,406 8,600 (270) 8,330
Trade name 3 5,680 (2,446) 3,234 5,680 (552) 5,128
Other 6 9,331 (8,964) 367 9,326 (8,551) 775

Total other acquired intangible assets $ 176,121 $ (94,232) $ 81,889 $ 163,963 $ (74,574) $ 89,389
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NOTE 5

Senior noteS and other lonG-term debt
Total long-term debt consisted of the following as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010:

(In thousands)

As of April 1, 

2011
As of April 2, 

2010

senior notes due 2016 (the notes)

Notes $ 275,000 $ 275,000
Unamortized discount on the Notes (2,704) (3,199)

Total Notes, net of discount 272,296 271,801

Less: current portion of the Notes — —

Total Notes long-term, net 272,296 271,801

other long-term deBt

Line of credit 60,000 60,000
Capital lease obligations, due fiscal years 2014 to 2015, weighted average interest rate of 4.69% 3,074 —

Total other long-term debt 63,074 60,000
Less: current portion of other long-term debt 1,128 —

Other long-term debt, net 61,946 60,000
Total debt 335,370 331,801

Less: current portion 1,128 —

Long-term debt, net $ 334,242 $ 331,801

The aggregate payments on the Company’s long-term debt obligations, excluding the effects of discount accretion, on its 
$275.0 million of Notes and required interest payments on the Credit Facility as of April 1, 2011 were as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ending  
(In thousands)

2012 $ 1,238
2013 1,308
2014 723
2015 —
2016 60,000
Thereafter 275,000

338,269
Less: imputed interest 195
Less: unamortized discount on the Notes 2,704

Total $ 335,370

Senior noteS due 2016
On October 22, 2009, the Company issued $275.0 million in principal amount of Notes in a private placement to institu-
tional buyers, which Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the 
SEC. The Notes bear interest at the rate of 8.875% per year, payable semi-annually in cash in arrears, which interest pay-
ments commenced in March 2010. The Notes were issued with an original issue discount of 1.24%, or $3.4 million. The 
Notes are recorded as long-term debt, net of original issue discount, in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 
The original issue discount and deferred financing cost associated with the issuance of the Notes is amortized to interest 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the Notes.

The Notes are guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by each of the Company’s existing and future subsidiaries that 
guarantees the Credit Facility (the Guarantor Subsidiaries). The Notes and the guarantees are the Company’s and the 
Guarantor Subsidiaries’ general senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company’s 
existing and future unsecured unsubordinated debt. The Notes and the guarantees are effectively junior in right of payment 
to their existing and future secured debt, including under the Credit Facility (to the extent of the value of the assets securing 
such debt), are structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of the Company’s 
subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Notes, and are senior in right of payment to all of their existing and future 
subordinated indebtedness.
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

The indenture agreement governing the Notes limits, among other things, the Company’s and its restricted subsidiaries’ 
ability to: incur, assume or guarantee additional debt; issue redeemable stock and preferred stock; pay dividends, make 
distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock; prepay, redeem or repurchase subordinated debt; make loans and 
investments; grant or incur liens; restrict dividends, loans or asset transfers from restricted subsidiaries; sell or otherwise 
dispose of assets; enter into transactions with affiliates; reduce the Company’s satellite insurance; and consolidate or merge 
with, or sell substantially all of their assets to, another person.

Prior to September 15, 2012, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the Notes at a redemption price of 108.875% of the 
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the redemption date, from the net cash pro-
ceeds of specified equity offerings. The Company may also redeem the Notes prior to September 15, 2012, in whole or in 
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the applicable premium and any accrued 
and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the redemption date. The applicable premium is calculated as the greater of: (i) 1.0% 
of the principal amount of such Notes and (ii) the excess, if any, of (a) the present value at such date of redemption of (1) 
the redemption price of such Notes on September 15, 2012 plus (2) all required interest payments due on such Notes 
through September 15, 2012 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest to the date of redemption), computed using a discount 
rate equal to the treasury rate (as defined under the indenture) plus 50 basis points, over (b) the then-outstanding principal 
amount of such Notes. The Notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time during the twelve months beginning 
on September 15, 2012 at a redemption price of 106.656%, during the twelve months beginning on September 15, 2013 
at a redemption price of 104.438%, during the twelve months beginning on September 15, 2014 at a redemption price of 
102.219%, and at any time on or after September 12, 2015 at a redemption price of 100%, in each case plus accrued and 
unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the redemption date.

In the event a change of control occurs (as defined under the indenture), each holder will have the right to require the 
Company to repurchase all or any part (equal to $2,000 or larger integral multiples of $1,000) of such holder’s Notes at a 
purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes repurchased plus accrued and 
unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to 
receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date).

credit Facilit y
As of April 1, 2011, the Credit Facility provided a revolving line of credit of $325.0 million (including up to $35.0 million of 
letters of credit), with a maturity date of January 25, 2016. On January 25, 2011, the Company amended the Credit Facility 
to (1) increase the Company’s revolving line of credit from $275.0 million to $325.0 million, (2) extend the maturity date of 
the Credit Facility from July 1, 2012 to January 25, 2016, (3) decrease the commitment fee and the applicable margin for 
Eurodollar and base rate loans under the Credit Facility, and (4) amend certain financial and other covenants to provide the 
Company with increased flexibility. Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, at either (1) 
the highest of the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, the Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% or the administrative agent’s prime rate 
as announced from time to time, or (2) at the Eurodollar rate plus, in the case of each of (1) and (2), an applicable margin 
that is based on the ratio of the Company’s debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). 
At April 1, 2011, the weighted average effective interest rate on the Company’s outstanding borrowings under the Credit 
Facility was 3.29%. The Company has capitalized certain amounts of interest expense on the Credit Facility in connection 
with the construction of ViaSat-1, related gateway and networking equipment and other assets currently under construction. 
The Credit Facility is guaranteed by certain of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries and collateralized by substantially all of 
the Company’s and the Guarantor Subsidiaries’ assets.

The Credit Facility contains financial covenants regarding a maximum leverage ratio, a maximum senior secured leverage 
ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit Facility contains covenants that restrict, among other 
things, the Company’s ability to sell assets, make investments and acquisitions, make capital expenditures, grant liens, pay 
dividends and make certain other restricted payments.

The Company was in compliance with its financial covenants under the Credit Facility as of April 1, 2011. At April 1, 2011, 
the Company had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility and $14.3 million 
outstanding under standby letters of credit, leaving borrowing availability under the Credit Facility as of April 1, 2011 of 
$250.7 million.

caPital leaSeS
Occasionally the Company may enter into capital lease agreements for various machinery, equipment, computer-related 
equipment, software, furniture or fixtures. As of April 1, 2011, the Company had approximately $3.1 million outstanding 
under capital leases payable over a weighted average period of 36 months. These lease agreements bear interest at a 
weighted average rate of 4.69% and can be extended on a month-to-month basis after the original term. The Company had 
no material capital lease arrangements as of April 2, 2010.
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NOTE 6

common Stock and Stock PlanS
On March 31, 2010, the Company and certain former WildBlue equity and debt holders (the WildBlue Investors) 
 completed the sale of an aggregate of 6,900,000 shares of ViaSat common stock in an underwritten public offering, 
3,173,962 of which were sold by the Company and 3,726,038 of which were sold by such WildBlue Investors. The 
Company’s net proceeds from the offering were approximately $100.5 million after deducting underwriting discounts 
and estimated offering expenses. The shares sold by such WildBlue Investors in the offering constituted shares of ViaSat 
common stock issued to such WildBlue Investors in connection with the Company’s acquisition of WildBlue. On April 1, 
2010, the Company used $80.0 million of the net proceeds to repay outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. 
The remaining net proceeds from the offering were used for general corporate purposes.

In March 2010, the Company filed a universal shelf registration statement with the SEC for the future sale of an 
unlimited amount of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, warrants, and rights. The 
securities may be offered from time to time, separately or together, directly by the Company, by selling security holders, 
or through underwriters, dealers or agents at amounts, prices, interest rates and other terms to be determined at the 
time of the offering.

In November 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Equity Participation Plan. The 1996 Equity Participation Plan pro-
vides for the grant to executive officers, other key employees, consultants and non-employee directors of the Company a 
broad variety of stock-based compensation alternatives such as nonqualified stock options, incentive stock options, 
restricted stock units and performance awards. From November 1996 to September 2010 through various amendments 
of the 1996 Equity Participation Plan, the Company increased the maximum number of shares reserved for issuance 
under this plan from 2,500,000 shares to 17,400,000 shares. The Company believes that such awards better align the 
interests of its employees with those of its stockholders. Shares of the Company’s common stock granted under the Plan 
in the form of stock options or stock appreciation right are counted against the Plan share reserve on a one for one 
basis. Shares of the Company’s common stock granted under the Plan as an award other than as an option or as a stock 
appreciation right with a per share purchase price lower than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant are counted 
against the Plan share reserve as two shares for each share of common stock up to September 22, 2010 and subse-
quently as 2.65 shares for each share of common stock. Restricted stock units are granted to eligible employees and 
directors and represent rights to receive shares of common stock at a future date. As of April 1, 2011, the Company had 
granted options and restricted stock units, net of cancellations, to purchase 8,962,233 and 2,405,021 shares of com-
mon stock, respectively, under the Plan.

In November 1996, the Company adopted the ViaSat, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan) to assist employees in acquiring a stock ownership interest in the Company and to encourage them to 
remain in the employment of the Company. The Employee Stock Purchase Plan is intended to qualify under Section 423 
of the Internal Revenue Code. In July of 2009, the Company amended the Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase 
the maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under this plan from 1,500,000 shares to 2,250,000 shares. The 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock at a discount through payroll 
deductions during specified six-month offering periods. No employee may purchase more than $25,000 worth of stock 
in any calendar year. The price of shares purchased under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is equal to 85% of the 
fair market value of the common stock on the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is lower. As of April 1, 
2011, the Company had issued 1,710,854 shares of common stock under this plan.
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Transactions related to the Company’s stock options are summarized as follows: 

Number of  
Shares

Exercise Price  
per Share

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price  

per Share

Outstanding at March 28, 2008 5,641,225 $ 4.70–$43.82 $ 19.63
Options granted 280,800 19.05– 27.27 21.04
Options canceled (135,700) 10.73– 33.68 24.86
Options exercised (337,276) 4.70– 22.03 10.73

Outstanding at April 3, 2009 5,449,049 5.03– 43.82 20.12
Options granted 383,900 23.66– 29.45 29.05
Options canceled (94,874) 5.03– 43.82 29.06
Options exercised (1,019,899) 5.03– 30.74 19.06

Outstanding at April 2, 2010 4,718,176 5.03– 33.68 20.90
Options granted 266,250 39.21– 41.52 41.26
Options canceled (20,543) 8.94– 33.68 27.40
Options exercised (1,124,415) 5.03– 33.68 19.60

Outstanding at April 1, 2011 3,839,468 $ 5.03–$41.52 $ 22.66

All options issued under the Company’s stock option plans have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the 
Company’s stock on the date of the grant.

The following table summarizes all options outstanding and exercisable by price range as of April 1, 2011:

Range of Exercise Prices
Number  

Outstanding

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life-Years
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price
Number  

Exercisable
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price

$ 5.03–$ 12.76 387,292 1.79  $ 10.36 387,292  $ 10.36
13.01– 18.25 546,376 1.61 15.31 546,376 15.31
18.41– 18.41 3,500 1.67 18.41 3,500 18.41
18.73– 18.73 470,315 3.52 18.73 470,315 18.73
18.97– 20.95 392,366 3.12 20.22 270,866 20.27
21.02– 23.37 387,669 3.73 21.62 387,669 21.62
23.66– 25.88 214,317 2.62 24.60 199,967 24.60
26.15– 26.15 501,438 1.52 26.15 501,438 26.15
26.63– 29.45 440,350 4.39 28.91 169,200 28.35
30.37– 41.52 495,845 4.05 36.91 194,833 32.00

$ 5.03–$ 41.52 3,839,468 2.91  $ 22.66 3,131,456  $ 20.50

Transactions related to the Company’s restricted stock units are summarized as follows:

Number of  
Restricted Stock Units

Outstanding at March 28, 2008 300,909
Awarded 637,200
Forfeited (29,717)
Released (94,181)

Outstanding at April 3, 2009 814,211
Awarded 831,250
Forfeited (21,807)
Released (234,039)

Outstanding at April 2, 2010 1,389,615
Awarded 630,056
Forfeited (37,035)
Released (433,173)

Outstanding at April 1, 2011 1,549,463

All restricted stock units awarded under the Company’s stock plans have an exercise price equal to zero.
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NOTE 7

ShareS uSed in comPutinG diluted net income Per Share
Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

weighted aVerage

Common shares outstanding used in calculating basic net income per share attributable to 
ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders 40,858 33,020 30,772

Options to purchase common stock as determined by application of the treasury stock method 1,611 1,404 944
Restricted stock units to acquire common stock as determined by application of the treasury 

stock method 428 272 130
Contingently issuable shares in connection with certain terms of the JAST acquisition agreement — — 5
Potentially issuable shares in connection with certain terms of the amended ViaSat 401(k) Profit 

Sharing Plan 113 114 1
Employee Stock Purchase Plan equivalents 49 29 32

Shares used in computing diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc.  
common stockholders 43,059 34,839 31,884

Antidilutive shares relating to stock options excluded from the calculation were 108,637 for the fiscal year ended April 1, 
2011, 496,545 for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2010 and 2,771,573 for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009. Antidilutive 
shares relating to restricted stock units excluded from the calculation were 4,525 for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2011, 
521 for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2010 and 8,490 for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009.

NOTE 8

income taxeS
The provision for income taxes includes the following: 

Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1, 

2011
April 2, 

2010
April 3, 

2009

Current tax provision (benefit)
Federal $ 433 $ (6,461) $ 13,021
State 3,178 (667) 3,644
Foreign 222 199 215

3,833 (6,929) 16,880

Deferred tax provision (benefit)
Federal 3,704 13,608 (5,059)
State (7,064) (1,191) (5,005)
Foreign (475) (50) (22)

(3,835) 12,367 (10,086)

Total (benefit from) provision for income taxes $ (2) $ 5,438 $ 6,794
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are as follows: 

(In thousands)

As of April 1, 

2011
As of April 2,  

2010

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 79,930 $ 86,325
Tax credit carryforwards 46,355 28,673
Warranty reserve 5,086 4,363
Accrued compensation 5,125 4,394
Deferred rent 2,673 2,582
Inventory reserve 4,899 1,498
Stock-based compensation 8,830 7,654
Contract accounting 1,415 2,005
Other 8,060 8,001
Valuation allowance (12,671) ` (13,074)

Total deferred tax assets 149,702 132,421

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, equipment and satellites and intangible assets 87,254 70,160

Total deferred tax liabilities 87,254 70,160

Net deferred tax assets $ 62,448 $ 62,261

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate 
to income before income taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1, 

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3, 

2009

Tax expense at federal statutory rate $ 12,749 $ 12,698 $ 15,834
State tax provision, net of federal benefit 1,375 2,259 2,545
Tax credits, net of valuation allowance (15,615) (11,408) (10,017)
Manufacturing deduction — — (920)
Non-deductible transaction costs 30 1,435 —
Non-deductible compensation 1,054 377 468
Other 405 77 (1,116)

Total provision for income taxes $ (2) $ 5,438 $ 6,794

As of April 1, 2011, the Company had federal and state research credit carryforwards of approximately $42.3 million and 
$46.1 million, respectively, which begin to expire in fiscal year 2027 and fiscal year 2018, respectively, and federal and 
state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $211.9 million and $278.8 million, respectively, which begin to 
expire in fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2012, respectively.

The Company recognizes excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation to stockholders’ equity only when 
realized. When assessing whether excess tax benefits relating to share-based compensation have been realized, the 
Company follows the with-and-without approach excluding any indirect effects of the excess tax deductions. Under this 
approach, excess tax benefits related to share-based compensation are not deemed to be realized until after the utilization 
of all other tax benefits available to the Company. During fiscal year 2011, the Company realized $1.3 million of such 
excess state tax benefits and, accordingly, recorded a corresponding credit to additional paid in capital. As of April 1, 
2011, the Company had $9.6 million of unrealized excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation. These 
tax benefits will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid-in capital if and when realized, rather than a reduction of 
the provision for income taxes.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for income taxes (ASC 740), net deferred tax assets are reduced by a valua-
tion allowance if, based on all the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will 
not be realized. A valuation allowance of $12.7 million at April 1, 2011 and $13.1 million at April 2, 2010 has been estab-
lished relating to state net operating loss carryforwards and research credit carryforwards that, based on management’s 
estimate of future taxable income attributable to certain states and generation of additional research credits, are considered 
more likely than not to expire unused.

If the Company has an “Ownership Change” as defined under Internal Revenue Code Section 382, it may have an annual 
limitation on the utilization of its net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
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On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in 
income taxes (ASC 740).

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits:

(In thousands)

As of April 1,  

2011
As of April 2,  

2010
As of April 3,  

2009

Balance, beginning of fiscal year $ 31,759 $ 37,917 $ 30,691
Increases related to current year tax positions 4,740 3,031 8,880
Increase (decrease) related to prior year tax positions 1,819 (2,058) (717)
Statute expirations (5,303) (3,452) (937)
Settlements — (3,679) —

Balance, end of fiscal year $ 33,015 $ 31,759 $ 37,917

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits at April 1, 2011, approximately $26.1 million would reduce the Company’s annual 
effective tax rate if recognized, subject to valuation allowance consideration.

Included in the balance at April 1, 2011 are $1.4 million of tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain 
but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, 
other than interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective 
tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

In the next twelve months it is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by 
approximately $2.5 million as a result of the expiration of the statute of limitations or settlements with tax authorities for 
previously filed tax returns.

The Company is subject to periodic audits by domestic and foreign tax authorities. By statute, the Company’s U.S. federal 
returns are subject to examination by the IRS for fiscal years 2008 through 2010. Additionally, tax credit carryovers that 
were generated in prior years and utilized in these years may also be subject to examination by the IRS. In September 
2010, the IRS commenced an examination of our fiscal year 2009 federal income tax return. Subsequently, the IRS added 
our fiscal year 2010 income tax return to the examination. With few exceptions, fiscal years 2007 to 2010 remain open to 
examination by state and foreign taxing jurisdictions. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income 
tax positions taken on its tax returns and its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years based on an assess-
ment of many factors, including past experience and interpretations. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest expense 
and penalties related to income tax matters as a component of income tax expense. There were no accrued interest or 
penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as of April 1, 2011. A decrease of $0.5 million of interest and penalties 
was recorded in the period ended April 1, 2011.

NOTE 9

acquiSitionS
Stonewood acquiSition
On July 8, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of the parent company of Stonewood. 
Stonewood is a leader in the design, manufacture and delivery of data at rest encryption products and services. Stonewood 
products are used to encrypt data on computer hard drives so that a lost or stolen laptop does not result in the compromise 
of classified information or the loss of intellectual property. The purchase price of approximately $18.8 million was comprised 
of $4.6 million related to the fair value of 144,962 shares of the Company’s common stock issued at the closing and $14.2 
million in cash consideration paid to former Stonewood stockholders. The $14.2 million in cash consideration paid to the for-
mer Stonewood stockholders less cash acquired of $0.7 million resulted in a net cash outlay of approximately $13.5 million.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for business combinations (ASC 805), the Company allocated the purchase 
price of the acquired company to the net tangible assets and intangible assets acquired based upon their estimated fair 
values. Under the authoritative guidance for business combinations, acquisition-related transaction costs and acquisition-
related restructuring charges are not included as components of consideration transferred but are accounted for as 
expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred. Total merger-related transaction costs incurred by the Company 
were approximately $0.9 million, all of which were incurred and recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses 
in fiscal year 2011.
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities based on the estimated fair values 
as of July 8, 2010 is as follows:

(In thousands)

Current assets $ 4,382
Property and equipment 484
Identifiable intangible assets 11,199
Goodwill 7,381

Total assets acquired 23,446
Current liabilities (1,843)
Other long term liabilities (2,770)

Total liabilities assumed (4,613)

Total purchase price $ 18,833

Amounts assigned to identifiable intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives and are as follows:

 

Preliminary  
Fair Value 

(In thousands)
Estimated Weighted  

Average Life

Technology $ 9,026 5
Customer relationships 1,977 10
Non-compete agreements 196 5

Total identifiable intangible assets $ 11,199 6

The intangible assets acquired in the Stonewood business combination were determined, in accordance with the authorita-
tive guidance for business combinations, based on the estimated fair values using valuation techniques consistent with the 
market approach and/or income approach to measure fair value. The remaining useful lives were estimated based on the 
underlying agreements and/or the future economic benefit expected to be received from the assets.

The acquisition of Stonewood is beneficial to the Company as it enhances the Company’s current encryption security offer-
ings within the Company’s information assurance products and provides additional solutions in the design, manufacture 
and delivery of data at rest encryption products and services. These benefits and additional opportunities were among the 
factors that contributed to a purchase price resulting in the recognition of preliminary estimated goodwill, which was 
recorded within the Company’s government systems segment. The intangible assets and goodwill recognized are not 
deductible for federal income tax purposes. The purchase price allocation is preliminary due to pending resolution of cer-
tain Stonewood tax attributes. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, the Company recorded a $0.5 million adjust-
ment to the preliminary purchase price allocation for Stonewood related to pre-acquisition net operating loss carryovers, 
reducing the Company’s government systems segment goodwill with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of Stonewood from the date of acquisition. Pro forma 
results of operations have not been presented because the effect of the acquisition was insignificant to the financial state-
ments for all periods presented.

wildblue acquiSition
On December 15, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of WildBlue, a privately held pro-
vider of broadband internet service, delivering two-way broadband internet access via satellite in the contiguous United 
States. The purchase price of approximately $574.6 million was comprised primarily of $131.9 million related to the fair 
value of 4,286,250 shares of the Company’s common stock issued at the closing date and $442.7 million in cash consider-
ation. The $442.7 million in cash consideration paid to the former WildBlue stockholders less cash and restricted cash 
acquired of $64.7 million resulted in a net cash outlay of approximately $378.0 million. As of April 2, 2010, all of the 
acquired restricted cash had become unrestricted. Total merger-related transaction costs incurred by the Company related 
to WildBlue acquisition were approximately $8.7 million, all of which were incurred and recorded in selling, general and 
administrative expenses in fiscal year 2010.
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The purchase price allocation of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities based on the estimated fair  
values is as follows:

(In thousands)

Current assets $ 106,672
Property, equipment and satellites 378,263
Identifiable intangible assets 82,070
Goodwill 9,809
Deferred income taxes 22,693
Other assets 1,969

Total assets acquired 601,476
Current liabilities (19,689)
Other long term liabilities (7,168)

Total liabilities assumed (26,857)

Total purchase price $ 574,619

Amounts assigned to identifiable intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives and are as follows:

Fair Value  
(In thousands)

Estimated Weighted  
Average Life

Trade name $ 5,680 3
Customer relationships — retail 39,840 6
Customer relationships — wholesale 27,950 8
Satellite co-location rights 8,600 10

Total identifiable intangible assets $ 82,070 7

The intangible assets acquired in the WildBlue business combination were determined, in accordance with the authoritative 
guidance for business combinations, based on the estimated fair values using valuation techniques consistent with the mar-
ket approach, income approach and/or cost approach to measure fair value. The remaining useful lives were estimated 
based on the underlying agreements and/or the future economic benefit expected to be received from the assets. Under 
the terms of the co-location right agreement, the Company has certain option periods that begin in approximately 10 years 
based upon the life of Anik F2 Ka-Band Payload.

The acquisition of WildBlue is beneficial to the Company as it is expected to enable the Company to integrate the extensive 
bandwidth capacity of its ViaSat-1 satellite into WildBlue’s existing distribution and fulfillment resources, which are expected 
to reduce initial service costs and improve subscriber growth. These benefits and additional opportunities were among the 
factors that contributed to a purchase price resulting in the recognition of goodwill, which was recorded within the 
Company’s satellite services segment. The intangible assets and goodwill recognized are not deductible for federal income 
tax purposes. During fiscal year 2011, the Company recorded a $0.4 million adjustment to the final purchase price alloca-
tion for WildBlue primarily related to pre-acquisition net operating loss carryovers, increasing the Company’s satellite ser-
vices segment goodwill with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets.

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of WildBlue from the date of acquisition. During fiscal 
year 2010, since the acquisition date, the Company recorded approximately $63.4 million in revenue and $0.4 million of 
net income with respect to the WildBlue business in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

52593_E.indd   85 6/17/11   4:10 PM



| 
  

 2
0

11
 a

n
n

u
a

l
 R

e
p

o
R

t
8

6

NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information
The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company 
and WildBlue on a pro forma basis, as though the companies had been combined as of the beginning of the related fiscal 
years. The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and may not be indicative of the 
results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the related 
 fiscal years. The pro forma financial information for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 include the business combination 
accounting effect on historical WildBlue revenue, elimination of the historical ViaSat revenues and related costs of 
 revenues derived from sales of CPE units to WildBlue, amortization and depreciation charges from acquired intangible and 
tangible assets, the difference between WildBlue’s and ViaSat’s historical interest expense/interest income due to ViaSat’s 
new capitalization structure as a result of the acquisition, related tax effects and adjustment to shares outstanding for 
shares issued for the acquisition.

Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands, except per share data)

April 2, 

2010
April 3, 

2009

Total revenues $ 818,505 $ 792,241

Net income attributable to ViaSat, Inc. $ 30,792 $ 4,921

Basic net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders $ 0.85 $ 0.14

Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat, Inc. common stockholders $ 0.81 $ 0.14

NOTE 10

emPloyee beneFitS
The Company is a sponsor of a voluntary deferred compensation plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code 
which was amended during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009. Under the amended plan, the Company may make dis-
cretionary contributions to the plan which vest over six years. The Company’s discretionary matching contributions to the 
plan are based on the amount of employee contributions and can be made in cash or the Company’s common stock at the 
Company’s election. Subsequent to the fiscal year-end, the Company elected to settle the discretionary contributions liabil-
ity in stock. Based on the year-end common stock closing price, the Company would issue 161,865 shares of common 
stock at this time. Discretionary contributions accrued by the Company as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010 amounted to 
$6.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively.

NOTE 11 

commitmentS
In January 2008, the Company entered into several agreements with Space Systems/Loral, Inc. (SS/L), Loral Space & 
Communications, Inc. (Loral) and Telesat Canada related to the Company’s anticipated high-capacity satellite system. 
Under the satellite construction contract with SS/L, the Company purchased ViaSat-1, a new high-capacity Ka-band spot-
beam satellite designed by the Company and currently under construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million, subject 
to purchase price adjustments based on satellite performance. The total cost of the satellite is $246.0 million, but, as part 
of the satellite purchase arrangements, Loral executed a separate contract with SS/L whereby Loral is purchasing the 
Canadian beams on the ViaSat-1 satellite for approximately $36.9 million (15% of the total satellite cost). The Company has 
also entered into a beam sharing agreement with Loral, whereby Loral has agreed to reimburse the Company for 15% of the 
total costs associated with launch and launch insurance, which is estimated to be approximately $22.5 million, and in-orbit 
insurance and satellite operating costs post launch. On March 1, 2011, Loral entered into agreements with Telesat Canada 
pursuant to which Loral assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat Canada assumed from Loral all of Loral’s rights and obliga-
tions with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1.

In November 2008, the Company entered into a launch services agreement with Arianespace to procure launch services 
for ViaSat-1 at a cost estimated to be $107.8 million, depending on the mass of the satellite at launch. In March 2009, the 
Company substituted ILS International Launch Services, Inc. (ILS) for Arianespace as the primary provider of launch 
 services for ViaSat-1, and accordingly, the Company entered into a contract for launch services with ILS to procure launch 
services for ViaSat-1 at an estimated cost of approximately $80.0 million, subject to certain adjustments.

On May 7, 2009, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Launch Services Agreement with Arianespace, 
whereby Arianespace has agreed to perform certain launch services to maintain the launch capability for ViaSat-1, should 
the need arise, or for launch services of a future ViaSat satellite launch prior to December 2015. This amendment and 
restatement also provides for certain cost adjustments depending on fluctuations in foreign currencies, mass of the satellite 
launched and launch period timing.
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The Company has various other purchase commitments under satellite capacity agreements which are used to provide sat-
ellite networking services to its customers for future minimum payments of $18.7 million, $12.1 million, $12.3 million and 
$0.9 million in fiscal years 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively, with no further commitments thereafter.

The Company leases office and other facilities under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms ranging from one 
to fifteen years which expire between fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2022 and provide for pre-negotiated fixed rental 
rates during the terms of the lease. Certain of the Company’s facilities leases contain option provisions which allow for 
extension of the lease terms.

For operating leases, minimum lease payments, including minimum scheduled rent increases, are recognized as rent 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term as that term is defined in the authoritative guidance for leases (ASC 
840) including any option periods considered in the lease term and any periods during which the Company has use of the 
property but is not charged rent by a landlord (“rent holiday”). Leasehold improvement incentives paid to the Company by a 
landlord are recorded as a liability and amortized as a reduction of rent expense over the lease term. Total rent expense 
was $17.1 million, $14.5 million and $12.5 million in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Years Ending
(In thousands)

2012 $ 16,938
2013 15,525
2014 15,418
2015 14,394
2016 13,563
Thereafter 42,018

$ 117,856

NOTE 12

continGencieS
The Company is involved in a variety of claims, suits, investigations and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of busi-
ness, including actions with respect to intellectual property claims, breach of contract claims, labor and employment 
claims, tax and other matters. Although claims, suits, investigations and proceedings are inherently uncertain and their 
results cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believes that the resolution of its current pending matters will not 
have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

U.S. government agencies, including the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) and others, routinely audit and review a 
contractor’s performance on government contracts, indirect rates and pricing practices, and compliance with applicable 
contracting and procurement laws, regulations and standards. They also review the adequacy of the contractor’s compli-
ance with government standards for its accounting and management internal control systems, including: control environ-
ment and overall accounting system, general information technology system, budget and planning system, purchasing 
system, material management and accounting system, compensation system, labor system, indirect and other direct costs 
system, billing system and estimating system.

Government audits and reviews may conclude that the Company’s practices are not consistent with applicable laws and 
regulations and result in adjustments to contract costs and mandatory customer refunds. Such adjustments can be applied 
retroactively, which could result in significant customer refunds, penalties and sanctions against the Company, including 
withholding of payments, and increased government scrutiny that could delay or adversely affect the Company’s ability to 
receive timely payment on contracts, perform contracts or compete for contracts with the U.S. Government.

The Company’s incurred cost audits by the DCAA have not been completed for fiscal year 2003 and subsequent fiscal 
years. Although the Company has recorded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal year 2002 based upon an estimate of 
costs that the Company believes will be approved upon final audit or review, the Company does not know the outcome of 
any ongoing or future audits or reviews and adjustments, and if future adjustments exceed the Company’s estimates, its 
profitability would be adversely affected. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, based on recent events, including 
 communications with the DCMA, changes in the regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status 
of current government audits, the Company recorded an additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for its estimate 
of potential refunds to customers for potential cost adjustments on several multi-year U.S. government cost reimbursable 
contracts, bringing the Company’s total reserve to $6.7 million as of April 1, 2011. This reserve is classified as either an 
 element of accrued liabilities or as a reduction of unbilled accounts receivable based on status of the related contracts.
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NOTE 13 

Product warranty
The Company provides limited warranties on its products for periods of up to five years. The Company records a liability  
for its warranty obligations when products are shipped or they are included in long-term construction contracts based upon 
an estimate of expected warranty costs. Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as a current 
l iability. For mature products, the warranty cost estimates are based on historical experience with the particular product. 
For newer products that do not have a history of warranty cost, the Company bases its estimates on its experience with the 
technology involved and the type of failures that may occur. It is possible that the Company’s underlying assumptions will 
not reflect the actual experience and in that case, future adjustments will be made to the recorded warranty obligation.  
The following table reflects the change in the Company’s warranty accrual in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

Balance, beginning of period $ 11,208 $ 11,194 $ 11,679
Change in liability for warranties issued in period 7,396 6,988 7,720
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period (5,662) (6,974) (8,205)

Balance, end of period $ 12,942 $ 11,208 $ 11,194

NOTE 14

reStructurinG
In the third quarter of fiscal year 2010, the Company initiated a post-acquisition restructuring plan related to the termination 
of certain duplicative employee positions upon the acquisition of WildBlue. Under the terms of the plan, the Company 
recorded restructuring charges of approximately $0.5 million and $2.7 million as part of selling, general and administrative 
expenses within the satellite services segment during fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company recorded no 
restructuring charges during fiscal year 2009. As of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respec-
tively, of restructuring charges remained unpaid and recorded in accrued liabilities. During fiscal year 2011 and 2010, the 
Company paid approximately $0.6 million and $2.4 million of the outstanding restructuring liabilities, respectively.

NOTE 15

SeGment inFormation
The Company’s reporting segments, comprised of the government systems, commercial networks and satellite services seg-
ments, are primarily distinguished by the type of customer and the related contractual requirements. The Company’s gov-
ernment systems segment develops and produces network-centric, IP-based secure government communications systems, 
products and solutions. The more regulated government environment is subject to unique contractual requirements and 
possesses economic characteristics which differ from the commercial networks and satellite services segments. The 
Company’s commercial networks segment develops and produces a variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communica-
tion systems and ground networking equipment and products. The Company’s satellite services segment complements both 
the government systems and commercial networks segments by providing wholesale and retail satellite-based broadband 
internet services in the United States via the Company’s satellite and capacity agreements, as well as managed network 
services for the satellite communication systems of the Company’s consumer, enterprise and mobile broadband customers. 
The Company’s satellite services segment includes the Company’s acquired WildBlue business and the Company’s ViaSat-1 
satellite-related activities. The Company’s segments are determined consistent with the way management currently orga-
nizes and evaluates financial information internally for making operating decisions and assessing performance.

As discussed further in Note 1, included in the government systems segment operating profit for fiscal year 2011 is an $8.5 
million forward loss recorded during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 on a government satellite communications program. 
As discussed in Note 1, also included in the government systems segment operating profit for fiscal year 2011 is an addi-
tional $5.0 million in contract related reserves for potential cost adjustments on several multi-year U.S. government cost 
reimbursable contracts, which resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings. The Company’s satellite services segment 
operating profit for fiscal year 2011 reflects a $5.2 million benefit to cost of service revenues related to a WildBlue satellite 
capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment liabilities related thereto.
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Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

Revenues
Government Systems $ 384,111 $ 385,151 $ 388,656
Commercial Networks 183,143 227,120 230,828
Satellite Services 234,952 75,809 8,695
Elimination of intersegment revenues — — —

Total revenues $ 802,206 $ 688,080 $ 628,179

Operating profits (losses)
Government Systems $ 29,872 $ 55,720 $ 57,019
Commercial Networks (9,482) 6,091 63
Satellite Services 38,228 (9,305) (3,978)
Elimination of intersegment operating profits — — —

Segment operating profit before corporate and amortization 58,618 52,506 53,104
Corporate 44 (2) 5
Amortization of acquired intangible assets (19,409) (9,494) (8,822)

Income from operations $ 39,253 $ 43,010 $ 44,287

Amortization of acquired intangible assets by segment for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and  
April 3, 2009 was as follows:

(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

Government Systems $ 2,457 $ 1,086 $ 1,088
Commercial Networks 4,001 4,629 7,734
Satellite Services 12,951 3,779 —

Total amortization of acquired intangible assets $ 19,409 $ 9,494 $ 8,822

Assets identifiable to segments include: accounts receivable, unbilled accounts receivable, inventory, acquired intangible 
assets and goodwill. Segment assets as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010 were as follows:

(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010

Segment assets
Government Systems $ 228,194 $ 168,703
Commercial Networks 133,158 146,990
Satellite Services 93,857 107,919

Total segment assets 455,209 423,612
Corporate assets 950,539 869,940

Total assets $ 1,405,748 $ 1,293,552

Net acquired intangible assets and goodwill included in segment assets as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010  
were as follows:

 Net Acquired Intangible Assets Goodwill

(In thousands)

April 1, 

2011
April 2, 

2010
April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010

Government Systems $ 11,157 $ 1,708 $ 30,023 $ 22,161
Commercial Networks 5,391 9,389 43,700 43,461
Satellite Services 65,341 78,292 9,809 9,402

Total $ 81,889 $ 89,389 $ 83,532 $ 75,024
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Revenue information by geographic area for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009  
was as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended 
(In thousands)

April 1,  

2011
April 2,  

2010
April 3,  

2009

United States $ 667,060 $ 554,522 $ 528,342
Europe, Middle East and Africa 95,356 90,838 49,024
Asia, Pacific 24,203 25,293 30,716
North America other than United States 8,321 9,026 14,840
Latin America 7,266 8,401 5,257

Total $ 802,206 $ 688,080 $ 628,179

The Company distinguishes revenues from external customers by geographic area based on customer location.

The net book value of long-lived assets located outside the United States was $7.9 million and $4.4 million at April 1, 2011 
and April 2, 2010, respectively.

NOTE 16

certain relationShiPS and related-Party tranSactionS
Michael Targoff, a director of the Company since February 2003, currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Vice Chairman of the board of directors of Loral, the parent of SS/L, and is also a director of Telesat Holdings Inc., a joint 
venture company formed by Loral and the Public Sector Pension Investment Board to acquire Telesat Canada in October 
2007. John Stenbit, a director of the Company since August 2004, also currently serves on the board of directors of Loral.

In January 2008, the Company entered into a satellite construction contract with SS/L under which the Company 
 purchased a new high-capacity Ka-band spot-beam satellite (ViaSat-1) designed by the Company and currently under 
 construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million, subject to purchase price adjustments based on satellite perfor-
mance. In addition, the Company entered into a beam sharing agreement with Loral, whereby Loral is responsible for con-
tributing 15% of the total costs (estimated at approximately $57.6 million) associated with the ViaSat-1 satellite project. The 
Company’s purchase of the ViaSat-1 satellite from SS/L was approved by the disinterested members of the Company’s 
Board of Directors, after a determination by the disinterested members of the Company’s Board that the terms and condi-
tions of the purchase were fair to and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. On March 1, 2011, Loral 
entered into agreements with Telesat Canada pursuant to which Loral assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat Canada 
assumed from Loral all of Loral’s rights and obligations with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1.

During the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, under the satellite construction contract, the 
Company paid $25.0 million, $62.9 million and $92.7 million, respectively, to SS/L and had no payable to SS/L as of April 
1, 2011 and $3.8 million payable to SS/L as of April 2, 2010. During the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and 
April 3, 2009, the Company also received $8.2 million, $2.6 million and $0.9 million, respectively, from SS/L under the 
beam sharing agreement with Loral. Accounts receivable due from SS/L under the beam sharing agreement with Loral were 
less than $0.1 million and $3.8 million as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively.

From time to time the Company enters into various contracts in the ordinary course of business with SS/L and Telesat 
Canada. Under a contract with SS/L, the Company recognized $3.3 million in revenue during fiscal year 2011 and received 
$3.9 million of cash during fiscal year 2011. During fiscal years 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized no revenue and 
had no cash receipts related to a contract with SS/L. Accounts receivable due under a contract with SS/L was $0.8 million 
as of April 1, 2011 and there was no accounts receivable outstanding as of April 2, 2010. Collections in excess of revenues 
and deferred revenues related to a contract with SS/L were $1.4 million and $0.8 million as of April 1, 2011 and April 2, 
2010, respectively. The Company recognized an immaterial amount of revenue related to Telesat Canada for the fiscal years 
ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, and approximately $2.0 million for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009. The 
Company received $1.2 million, $1.9 million and $2.5 million, respectively, from Telesat Canada during the fiscal years 
ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009. Accounts receivable due from Telesat Canada as of April 1, 2011 and 
April 2, 2010 were an immaterial amount and $0.9 million, respectively. The Company also recognized $2.2 million and 
$2.1 million of expense related to Telesat Canada for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 2010, respectively, 
and no material amounts for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009. During the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011 and April 2, 
2010, the Company paid $7.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively, to Telesat Canada. There were no material amounts 
paid to Telesat Canada during the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009. All other amounts related to SS/L and Telesat Canada, 
excluding activities under the ViaSat-1 related satellite contracts, were not material.
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NOTE 17 

Financial StatementS oF Parent and SubSidiary GuarantorS
On October 22, 2009, the Company issued $275.0 million in principal amount of Notes in a private placement to institu-
tional buyers. The Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the 
SEC. The Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed on a full and unconditional basis by each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries, 
which are 100% owned by the Company. The indenture governing the Notes limits, among other things, the Company’s and 
its restricted subsidiaries’ ability to: incur, assume or guarantee additional debt; issue redeemable stock and preferred 
stock; pay dividends, make distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock; prepay, redeem or repurchase subordi-
nated debt; make loans and investments; grant or incur liens; restrict dividends, loans or asset transfers from restricted 
subsidiaries; sell or otherwise dispose of assets; enter into transactions with affiliates; reduce the Company’s satellite insur-
ance; and consolidate or merge with, or sell substantially all of their assets to, another person.

The following supplemental financial information sets forth, on a condensed consolidating basis, the balance sheets, state-
ments of operations and statements of cash flows for the Company (as “Issuing Parent Company”), the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries, the non-guarantor subsidiaries and total consolidated Company and subsidiaries as of April 1, 2011 and April 
2, 2010 and for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2011, April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009.

Condensed Consolidated BalanCe sheet as of april 1, 2011

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

assets $ $ $ $

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,347 $ 7,600 $ 8,543 $ — $ 40,490
Accounts receivable, net $ 171,183 $ 10,644 $ 10,062 $ — 191,889
Inventories 88,542 7,484 2,932 (403) 98,555
Deferred income taxes 16,428 1,723 162 492 18,805
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 15,236 4,745 1,160 — 21,141

Total current assets 315,736 32,196 22,859 89 370,880
Satellites, net 276,418 256,582 — — 533,000
Property and equipment, net 122,945 103,410 7,785 (1,001) 233,139
Other acquired intangible assets, net 6,201 65,341 10,347 — 81,889
Goodwill 63,939 9,686 9,907 — 83,532
Investments in subsidiaries and intercompany 

receivables
490,288 2,246 404 (492,938) —

Other assets 89,834 12,922 552 — 103,308

Total assets $ 1,365,361 $ 482,383 $ 51,854 $ (493,850) $ 1,405,748

liaBilities and eQuitY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 62,465 $ 8,164 $ 1,083 $ — $ 71,712
Accrued liabilities 100,749 25,691 4,143 — 130,583
Current portion of other long-term debt 116 1,012 — — 1,128

Total current liabilities 163,330 34,867 5,226 — 203,423
Senior Notes due 2016, net 272,296 — — — 272,296
Other long-term debt 60,203 1,743 — — 61,946
Intercompany payables 14,606 — 11,945 (26,551) —
Other liabilities 16,464 4,321 3,057 — 23,842

Total liabilities 526,899 40,931 20,228 (26,551) 561,507

Equity:
ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Total ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity 838,462 441,452 31,626 (471,415) 840,125

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary — — — 4,116 4,116

Total equity 838,462 441,452 31,626 (467,299) 844,241

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,365,361 $ 482,383 $ 51,854 $ (493,850) $ 1,405,748
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Condensed Consolidated BalanCe sheet as of april 2, 2010

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

assets $ $ $ $

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 66,258 $ 16,216 $ 7,157 $ — $ 89,631
Accounts receivable, net $ 160,807 $ 11,983 $ 3,561 $ — 176,351
Inventories 75,222 6,313 1,427 — 82,962
Deferred income taxes 16,480 866 — — 17,346
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 25,457 2,504 896 — 28,857

Total current assets 344,224 37,882 13,041 — 395,147
Satellites, net 209,431 286,258 — — 495,689
Property and equipment, net 66,928 82,679 7,141 (944) 155,804
Other acquired intangible assets, net 10,872 78,292 225 — 89,389
Goodwill 63,940 9,279 1,805 — 75,024
Investments in subsidiaries and intercompany 

receivables
596,313 2,324 7,654 (606,291) —

Other assets 60,812 21,070 617 — 82,499

Total assets $ 1,352,520 $ 517,784 $ 30,483 $ (607,235) $ 1,293,552

liaBilities and eQuitY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 71,765 $ 5,920 $ 670 $ — $ 78,355
Accrued liabilities 85,960 14,602 1,689 — 102,251

Total current liabilities 157,725 20,522 2,359 — 180,606
Senior Notes due 2016, net 271,801 — — — 271,801
Other long-term debt 60,000 — — — 60,000
Intercompany payables 93,468 — 14,505 (107,973) —
Other liabilities 16,356 7,990 49 — 24,395

Total liabilities 599,350 28,512 16,913 (107,973) 536,802

Equity:
ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Total ViaSat, Inc. stockholders’ equity 753,170 489,272 13,570 (503,007) 753,005

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary — — — 3,745 3,745

Total equity 753,170 489,272 13,570 (499,262) 756,750

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,352,520 $ 517,784 $ 30,483 $ (607,235) $ 1,293,552
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Condensed Consolidated statement of operations for the fisCal Year ended april 1, 2011

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Revenues:
Product revenues $ 505,634 $ 5,546 $ 16,583 $ (3,825) $ 523,938
Service revenues 53,701 215,267 10,994 (1,694) 278,268

Total revenues 559,335 220,813 27,577 (5,519) 802,206
Operating expenses:

Cost of product revenues 375,635 8,228 9,426 (3,344) 389,945
Cost of service revenues 34,339 121,024 6,926 (1,666) 160,623
Selling, general and administrative 104,235 50,946 9,123 (39) 164,265
Independent research and development 27,807 — 924 (20) 28,711
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 4,672 12,954 1,783 — 19,409

Income (loss) from operations 12,647 27,661 (605) (450) 39,253
Other income (expense):

Interest income 687 — 9 (373) 323
Interest expense (3,103) (49) (375) 373 (3,154)

Income (loss) before income taxes 10,231 27,612 (971) (450) 36,422
Provision (benefit from) for income taxes (10,188) 10,325 353 (492) (2)
Equity in net income (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries 15,654 — — (15,654) —

Net income (loss) 36,073 17,287 (1,324) (15,612) 36,424
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling 

interest, net of tax — — — 309 309

Net income (loss) attributable to ViaSat, Inc. $ 36,073 $ 17,287 $ (1,324) $ (15,921) $ 36,115
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Condensed Consolidated statement of operations for the fisCal Year ended april 2, 2010

 

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Revenues:
Product revenues $ 581,911 $ 907 $ 4,065 $ (2,809) $ 584,074
Service revenues 34,986 62,499 7,010 (489) 104,006

Total revenues 616,897 63,406 11,075 (3,298) 688,080
Operating expenses:

Cost of product revenues 405,624 960 3,851 (1,909) 408,526
Cost of service revenues 23,070 36,937 7,316 (493) 66,830
Selling, general and administrative 109,931 20,957 2,013 (6) 132,895
Independent research and development 26,961 2 362 — 27,325
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 5,178 3,778 538 — 9,494

Income (loss) from operations 46,133 772 (3,005) (890) 43,010
Other income (expense):

Interest income 658 3 12 (52) 621
Interest expense (7,354) — (52) 52 (7,354)

Income (loss) before income taxes 39,437 775 (3,045) (890) 36,277
Provision (benefit from) for income taxes 5,113 308 17 — 5,438
Equity in net income (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries (2,300) — — 2,300 —

Net income (loss) 32,024 467 (3,062) 1,410 30,839
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling 

interest, net of tax — — — (297) (297)

Net income (loss) attributable to ViaSat, Inc. $ 32,024 $ 467 $ (3,062) $ 1,707 $ 31,136

52593_E.indd   94 6/17/11   4:10 PM



V
ia

s
a

t
 x

x
V

  
  

|
9

5

Condensed Consolidated statement of operations for the fisCal Year ended april 3, 2009

 

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Revenues:
Product revenues $ 590,403 $ — $ 6,128 $ (1,189) $ 595,342
Service revenues 27,042 — 6,364 (569) 32,837

Total revenues 617,445 — 12,492 (1,758) 628,179
Operating expenses:
Cost of product revenues 420,653 — 5,105 (1,138) 424,620
Cost of service revenues 18,097 — 4,577 (470) 22,204
Selling, general and administrative 96,707 — 1,917 — 98,624
Independent research and development 29,311 — 390 (79) 29,622
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 8,403 — 419 — 8,822

Income (loss) from operations 44,274 — 84 (71) 44,287
Other income (expense):

Interest income 1,325 — 138 — 1,463
Interest expense (507) — (2) — (509)

Income (loss) before income taxes 45,092 — 220 (71) 45,241
Provision (benefit from) for income taxes 6,791 — 3 — 6,794
Equity in net income (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries 100 — — (100) —

Net income (loss) 38,401 — 217 (171) 38,447
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling 

interest, net of tax — — — 116 116

Net income (loss) attributable to ViaSat, Inc. $ 38,401 $ — $ 217 $ (287) $ 38,331
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Condensed Consolidated statement of Cash flows for the fisCal Year ended april 1, 2011

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Cash flows from operating aCtiVities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 57,877 $ 112,029 $ (19) $ (270) $ 169,617

Cash flows from inVesting aCtiVities

Purchase of property, equipment and satellites, net (152,416) (54,126) (2,013) 270 (208,285)
Cash paid for patents, licenses and other assets (15,942) — (44) — (15,986)
Payments related to acquisition of businesses, net of 

cash acquired (14,203) — 747 — (13,456)
Investment in subsidiaries (726) 100 1,731 (1,105) —

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (183,287) (54,026) 421 (835) (237,727)

Cash flows from finanCing aCtiVities

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings 40,000 — — — 40,000
Payments on line of credit (40,000) — — — (40,000)
Payment of debt issuance costs (2,775) — — — (2,775)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under 

equity plans 26,398 — — — 26,398
Purchase of common stock in treasury (5,880) — — — (5,880)
Incremental tax benefits from stock-based 

compensation 867 — — — 867
Intercompany long-term financing 64,889 (66,619) 625 1,105 —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 83,499 (66,619) 625 1,105 18,610
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — 359 — 359

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (41,911) (8,616) 1,386 — (49,141)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 66,258 16,216 7,157 — 89,631

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 24,347 $ 7,600 $ 8,543 $ — $ 40,490
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Condensed Consolidated statement of Cash flows for the fisCal Year ended april 2, 2010

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Cash flows from operating aCtiVities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 74,032 $ 40,671 $ (1,238) $ (919) $ 112,546

Cash flows from inVesting aCtiVities

Purchase of property, equipment and satellites, net (121,497) (10,075) (3,890) 919 (134,543)
Cash paid for patents, licenses and other assets (13,709) — (87) — (13,796)
Payments related to acquisition of businesses, net of 

cash acquired (442,700) 64,336 377 — (377,987)
Change in restricted cash, net (31) 7,329 — — 7,298
Investment in subsidiariess (5,114) — 691 4,423 —

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (583,051) 61,590 (2,909) 5,342 (519,028)

Cash flows from finanCing aCtiVities

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings 263,000 — — — 263,000
Payments on line of credit (203,000) — — — (203,000)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of 

discount 271,582 — — — 271,582
Payment of debt issuance costs (12,781) — — — (12,781)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under 

equity plans 23,085 — — — 23,085
Proceeds from common stock issued under public 

offering, net of issuance costs 100,533 — — — 100,533
Purchase of common stock in treasury (10,326) — — — (10,326)
Intercompany long-term financing 85,354 (86,045) 5,114 (4,423) —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 517,447 (86,045) 5,114 (4,423) 432,093
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — 529 — 529

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,428 16,216 1,496 — 26,140
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 57,830 — 5,661 — 63,491

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 66,258 $ 16,216 $ 7,157 $ — $ 89,631
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NOtES tO CONSOlIDAtED FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS (CONT.)

Condensed Consolidated statement of Cash flows for the fisCal Year ended april 3, 2009

 

(In thousands)
Issuing Parent 

Company
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Consolidation 
and Elimination 

Adjustments Consolidated

Cash flows from operating aCtiVities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 64,376 $ — $ (2,363) $ (71) $ 61,942

Cash flows from inVesting aCtiVities

Purchase of property, equipment and satellites, net (115,976) — (1,289) 71 (117,194)
Cash paid for patents, licenses and other assets (7,921) — (107) — (8,028)
Payments related to acquisition of businesses, net of 

cash acquired (925) — — — (925)
Investment in subsidiaries (3,267) — (768) 4,035 —

Net cash used in investing activities (128,089) — (2,164) 4,106 (126,147)
Cash flows from finanCing aCtiVities

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings 10,000 — — — 10,000

Payments on line of credit (10,000) — — — (10,000)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under 

equity plans 6,742 — — — 6,742
Purchase of common stock in treasury (667) — — — (667)
Incremental tax benefits from stock-based 

compensation 346 — — — 346
Payment on secured borrowing (4,720) — — — (4,720)
Proceeds from sale of stock of majority-owned 

subsidiary — — 3,371 (1,871) 1,500
Intercompany long-term financing 767 — 1,397 (2,164) —

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,468 — 4,768 (4,035) 3,201
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — (681) — (681)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (61,245) — (440) — (61,685)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 119,075 — 6,101 — 125,176

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 57,830 $ — $ 5,661 $ — $ 63,491
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for the three fisCal Years ended april 1, 2011

Date  
(In thousands)

Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts

 

Balance, March 28, 2008 $ 310
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 377 
Deductions (325)

Balance, April 3, 2009 $ 362
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 416 
Deductions (239)

Balance, April 2, 2010 $ 539
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 813 
Deductions (859)

Balance, April 1, 2011 $ 493

 

Date  
(In thousands)

Deferred Tax Asset 
Valuation Allowance

 

Balance, March 28, 2008 $ 969
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 1,093 
Deductions —

Balance, April 3, 2009 $ 2,062
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 1,306 
Charged (credited) to goodwill* 9,706
Deductions —

Balance, April 2, 2010 $ 13,074
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses 1,445
Charged (credited) to goodwill* (1,848)
Deductions —

Balance, April 1, 2011 $ 12,671

 * Related to the acquisition of WildBlue
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MARKEt FOR REGIStRANt’S COMMON EQuIty AND  
RElAtED StOCKHOlDER MAttERS

Price ranGe oF common Stock
Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “VSAT.” The following table sets forth, 
for the periods indicated, the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported by Nasdaq.

 High Low

fisCal 2010

First Quarter $ 27.36 $ 20.35
Second Quarter 28.88 23.53
Third Quarter 32.46 28.12
Fourth Quarter 35.13 26.04

fisCal 2011

First Quarter $ 36.74 $ 30.60
Second Quarter 41.81 31.00
Third Quarter 44.88 38.40
Fourth Quarter 46.00 37.50

As of May 20, 2011, there were approximately 1,288 holders of record of our common stock. A substantially greater num-
ber of holders of ViaSat common stock are “street name” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held of record by banks, 
brokers and other financial institutions.

dividend Policy
To date, we have neither declared nor paid any dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all future 
earnings, if any, for use in the operation and development of our business and, therefore, do not expect to declare or pay 
any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be 
at the discretion of the Board of Directors, subject to any applicable restrictions under our debt and credit agreements, and 
will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business condition and 
such other factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant.

52593_E.indd   100 6/17/11   4:10 PM



V
ia

s
a

t
 x

x
V

  
  

|
10

1PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the value of an investment of $100 in cash on March 31, 2006 in (1) ViaSat’s common stock, 
(2) the NASDAQ Telecommunications Index, (3) the NASDAQ Composite Index and (4) the S&P 600 SmallCap Index. The 
graph assumes that all dividends, if any, were reinvested. The stock price performance shown on the graph is based on 
historical data and should not be considered indicative of future performance. The information contained under this head-
ing “Performance Graph” shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material,” or to be “filed” with the SEC, or subject to 
Regulation 14A or Regulation 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and shall not be 
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing of ViaSat, except to the extent that ViaSat specifically incorporates it 
by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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uSe oF non-GaaP Financial inFormation 
To supplement ViaSat’s consolidated financial statements presented in accordance with GAAP, ViaSat uses Adjusted 
EBITDA, a measure ViaSat believes is appropriate to enhance an overall understanding of ViaSat’s past financial 
performance and prospects for the future. Adjusted EBITDA represents net income (loss) attributable to ViaSat, Inc. before 
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, adjusted to exclude the effects of non-cash stock-based compensation 
expenses and acquisition-related expenses. We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to both management 
and investors by excluding specific expenses that we believe are not indicative of our core operating results. In addition, 
since we have historically reported non-GAAP results to the investment community, we believe the inclusion of non-GAAP 
numbers provides consistency in our financial reporting and facilitates comparisons to the company’s historical operating 
results. Further, these non-GAAP results are among the primary indicators that management uses as a basis for planning 
and forecasting in future periods. The presentation of this additional information is not meant to be considered in isolation 
or as a substitute for measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of specific 
adjustments to GAAP results is provided in the table “An Itemized Reconciliation Between Net Income Attributable to 
ViaSat, Inc. and Adjusted EBITDA” contained in this Annual Report.

Forward-lookinG StatementS
This Annual Report, including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” 
contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are subject to the safe harbors cre-
ated under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements are based on current 
expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions 
of our management. We use words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “goal,” “intend,” 
“may,” “plan,” “project,” “seek,” “should,” “target,” “will,” “would,” variations of such words and similar expressions to iden-
tify forward-looking statements. In addition, statements that refer to projections of earnings, revenue, costs or other financial 
items; anticipated growth and trends in our business or key markets; future growth and revenues from our products; future 
economic conditions and performance; anticipated performance of products or services; plans, objectives and strategies for 
future operations; and other characterizations of future events or circumstances, are forward-looking statements. Readers are 
cautioned that these forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions 
that are difficult to predict, including those risk factors listed in our most recent reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K and our 
other filings with the SEC. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements for any reason.
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The 2011 Annual Meeting will be held at  
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on January 27, 2012 at 8:30 a.m. Pacific Time.
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For investor information, financial information, 
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receive additional copies of this Annual Report 
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AltaSec, ArcLight, SKYLink, SurfBeam, Yonder, ViaSat and the ViaSat logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of ViaSat, Inc. WildBlue and the WildBlue  
logo are registered service marks of WildBlue Communications, Inc. All other product and company names mentioned herein are the property of their respective 
owners. Use of the CNN site does not constitute endorsement of ViaSat, Inc. or WildBlue Communications, Inc.
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